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VOrganizations Covered
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.* and its 58 consolidated subsidiaries
Please refer to page 4 for details of business entities from which 
environmental impact data is collected.
* Effective January 1, 2013, the Company’s head of�ce was moved to 9-2, Marunouchi 
   1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Subject notation
The terms “Hitachi Chemical,” “the Company,” and “non-consolidated”
only refer to Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., whereas“ the Hitachi Chemical 
Group,” “the Group,” and “consolidated” refer to the Hitachi Chemi-
cal Group.

VPeriod Covered by the Report
Fiscal 2012 (April 1, 2012 to March 31, 2013)
This report also contains information on activities of particular im-
portance prior to and after �scal 2012.
Please note that “Fiscal Year” or “FY” refer to the accounting year 
ending on March 31.

VGuidelines Adopted with respect to Non-�nancial Information
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guide-
lines Version 3.1
Environmental Reporting Guidelines 2012 version and Environ-
mental Accounting Guidelines 2005 version issued by the Ministry 
of the Environment of Japan

VForward-looking Statements
In addition to information of material fact regarding the past and 
present activities of the Hitachi Chemical Group, this report con-
tains forward-looking statements concerning future plans and 
forecasts. Forward-looking statements are based on currently avail-
able information as well as the Group’s assumptions and beliefs as 
of the date this report was issued. Accordingly, actual results and 
events may differ materially from forward-looking statements due 
to a variety of factors including changes in operating conditions.

VStatus of Inclusion in Indices
Hitachi Chemical is included in a number of domestic and in-
ternational socially responsible investment (SRI) indices in rec-
ognition of the Company’s established sustainability activity 
track record and constructive stance toward information dis-
closure. Please refer to page 33.

CONTENTS

Editorial Policy

Recognizing that non-�nancial information integrated with �-
nancial data has played an increasingly important role in evalu-
ating a company’s activities, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. began 
issuing its Annual Report in a revised format that integrates 
both annual and sustainability report components from the 
Annual Report 2012. Our hope is that this report will provide 
stakeholders with a deeper understanding of the Company’s 
economic, environmental and social activities that re�ect our 
corporate visions and slogan.

Issued in both Japanese and English, we have supple-
mented the hard copy version with a PDF format posted on our 
homepage. The English report contains the Financial Section. 
For �nancial data in Japanese, readers are directed to the Com-
pany’s Securities Report.

With respect to the content contained in this report, we 
have adopted a selective approach based on an analysis of 
both our external and internal environments and with a view 
to creating value for our stakeholders. Please refer to page 14. 
Detailed information is also posted on our website.

http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/ir/index.html
http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/csr/index.html
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Human Resource Reform + Individual Stance

Organizational Reform + Corporate Stance

Business Reform + Business Stance

40.0%    46.7% 82.1%    85.4%

30    39 484        473

1,752 1,553

Overseas Sales to Total Sales Ratio
The Hitachi Chemical Group is accelerating the pace of glob-
al business development in an effort to capture demand in 
emerging countries, which is exhibiting marked growth.

Number of Overseas Consolidated Subsidiaries
In order to become a global supplier, the Hitachi Chemical 
Group is expanding its overseas production capabilities as well 
as its overseas sales channels while building a structure and 
systems to facilitate local production for local consumption.

Number of Global Coaching Program Participants
The Global Coaching Program was introduced in �scal 2012 
as a tool to help employees put forward new value propos-
als on the world stage. Through dialogue with stakeholders, 
the Group is working to implement reforms that will ensure 
consistent dialogue and an organization that is active in taking 
up new challenges.

Ratio of Sustainable Engineering Products to Total Sales
The ratio of sustainable engineering products (Eco-products) 
to total sales is one indicator for evaluating the Hitachi Chemi-
cal Group’s business from a CSR perspective.

Reduction of CO2 Emissions
Each �scal year, Hitachi Chemical takes measures to combat 
climate change and sets targets for reducing CO2 emissions 
from its manufacturing activities in order to improve its envi-
ronmental performance inside and outside Japan.

Number of Employees Engaging in Volunteer So-
cial Contribution Activities
Conducted by employees on a volunteer basis, ongoing steps 
are being taken to hold science experiment classes for pre-
schoolers as well as activities that encompass such areas as 
nature in order to enhance awareness toward biodiversity con-
servation. These events have been attended by 3,417 com-
munity residents.

The Hitachi Chemical Group continues to integrate its business 
and CSR endeavors in an effort to remain a corporate group 
that prospers in partnership with the global society. Moving 
forward, we are taking steps to evaluate progress in carrying 
out our corporate philosophy which aims to reform the Group’s 
business, organizational and human resource structures from 
the business, corporate and individual CSR perspectives.

FY2008

FY2008

FY2008

FY2008

FY2012

FY2012

thousand 
tons

thousand 
tons

FY2012

FY2012

FY2012FY2012
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2013 (FY2012) (% change) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

For the �scal year:

  Net sales ¥464,655 (△  1.8) ¥473,069 ¥497,452 ¥455,287 ¥488,638

  Operating income 23,559 (△  3.8) 24,495 43,471 38,341 19,938

  Net income 18,818 (14.6) 16,427 18,943 23,509 2,740

  Research and development expenses 25,534 (△  0.6) 25,680 26,382 25,402 27,617

  Capital expenditures 46,698 (25.0) 37,347 30,432 20,984 35,972

  Depreciation and amortization 25,255 (△10.6) 28,240 28,985 31,666 34,560

At the �scal year-end:

  Total assets ¥477,880 (8.4) ¥440,981 ¥432,184 ¥426,586 ¥391,350

  Total net assets 313,404 (9.1) 287,239 290,311 282,602 263,588

Per share data:

  Net income ¥    90.36    ¥    78.88    ¥    90.96    ¥  112.88    ¥    13.15

  Cash dividends 38.00 36.00 36.00 32.00 32.00

  Net assets 1,474.11 1,359.33 1,320.30 1,289.11 1,203.92

For the �scal year:

  Cash �ows from operating activities ¥  47,931 ¥  42,072 ¥  44,015 ¥  56,497 ¥  55,490

  Cash �ows from investing activities △53,182 △67,202 △35,748 △20,003 △41,621

  Cash �ows from �nancing activities △  2,867 4,611 △  6,823 △12,622 △13,778

  Cash and cash equivalents 
  at end of the �scal year 73,978 76,318 96,775 97,603 73,964

Millions of yen (except per share data)

Millions of yen

%

Financial Highlights

Business

Value Indicators    
2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Operating margin (%) 4.0 3.5 3.8 5.2 0.6

Return on equity (ROE) (%) 6.4 5.9 7.0 9.1 1.1

Return on assets (ROA) (%) 4.1 3.8 4.4 5.7 0.6

Debt /Equity ratio (DER) (times) 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Net Sales by Region
2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Total ¥464,655 ¥473,069 ¥497,452 ¥455,287 ¥488,638 

Japan 247,736 272,355 281,352 259,914 293,148

Asia 188,590 171,613 181,535 163,267 159,415

Others 28,329 29,101 34,565 32,106 36,075

Overseas sales ratio (%) 46.7 42.4 43.4 42.9 40.0

Ratio of Sustainable Engineering Products to Total Sales
2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Ratio of Eco-products to total sales 85.4 85.1 87.1 83.3 82.1

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and the Consolidated Subsidiaries for the Years Ended March 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009
*2013 = �scal year ended March 31, 2013; 2012 = �scal year ended March 31, 2012; 2011 = �scal year ended March 31, 2011; 2010 = �scal year ended March 31, 2010; 2009 = �scal year ended March 31, 2009

HIGHLIGHTS
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Organization

Human Resource

Number of Employees 

Others

2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Total 17,732 16,713 15,930 15,267 15,289

Japan 10,769 10,845 10,918 10,900 11,061

Overseas 6,963 5,868 5,012 4,367 4,228

2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Town meeting participation ratio (Japan/Overseas) (%) 70 / 89 71 / 89 60 / 90 − −

Number of diversity promotion program participants

Mentoring program 10 34 24 35 18

Global leadership forum 44 − 42 − −
Global coaching program 1,752 − − − −

Number of employees engaging in volunteer 
social contribution activities 1,553 831 523 457 267

Environmental Data
2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Energy total (1,000 GJ) 9,085 9,316 10,198 9,572 10,483

CO2 emissions (1,000 tons-CO2) 473 443 490 489 484

CO2 emissions per unit of sales
 (compared with the �scal 2005) 95 87 95 99 91

Emissions of substances covered by the PRTR Law
 (Japan) (Tons) 216 236 220 216 260

Waste total (tons) 63 71 68 70 71

Water total (1,000 m3) 11,371 12,537 12,394 12,995 13,076

Number of Consolidated Subsidiary Companies
2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Total 58 57 51 50 53

Japan 19 20 20 22 23

Overseas 39 37 31 28 30

Others
2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Number of patents held 4,545 4,245 3,691 3,233  2,849 

Number of individual investor interviews 223 228 192 237 200

Safety Data (Consolidated in Japan)
2013 (FY2012) 2012 (FY2011) 2011 (FY2010) 2010 (FY2009) 2009 (FY2008)

Frequency rate 0.25 0.15 0.43 0.25 0.26

Severity rate 0.01 0.01 0.04 0.01 0.40

*Scope of environmental impact data reporting : 19 Companies and 39 sites, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd., Hitachi AIC Inc., Hitachi Chemical Electronics Co., Ltd., Hitachi Powdered 
Metals Co., Ltd., Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products Co., Ltd., Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd., Namie Japan Brake Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Filtec Inc., Hitachi Chemical Techno 
Service Co., Ltd., Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials (Kyushu) Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Co., (Taiwan) Ltd., Hitachi Chemical (Dongguan) 
Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical (Johor) Sdn. Bhd., Hitachi Chemical (Suzhou) Co., Ltd., Hitachi Storage Battery (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.

Notes:1. Frequency rate: The frequency of disasters and number of casualties due to occupational disasters per one million hours of work (cumulative)
          2. Severity rate: The degree of disaster severity and number of work days lost due to work-loss injuries per 1,000 working hours (cumulative)
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We provide �lms that help improve screen visibility 
and battery materials for extended use.

We provide food wrapping �lms 
as well as IC tags that make it 
easier to count dishes at sushi-go-
round restaurants.

Semiconductors

Smartphones Restaurants and Sushi-go-round restaurants

We provide important components for the semiconductors incorporated 
into such electronic devices as personal computers.

Functional Materials 
Segment

Advanced Components and
Systems Segment

New products continue to enter the market at a constant pace. Inno-
vations in materials underpin this uninterrupted stream and evolution. 
Hitachi Chemical employs its wide-ranging technologies that harness 
both organic and inorganic chemicals cultivated over many years to 
deliver leading-edge functional materials that assist customers in re-
solving problems.

The products of the Hitachi Chemical Group are used as materials and in the components employed to manufacture a variety of 
everyday items including digital household appliances and automobiles. The Group is committed to consistently enhancing product 
functions and performance in areas that remain unobtrusive, but are essential to life.

Customer needs are becoming increasingly diverse. By combining and 
adapting its cumulative portfolio of advanced material and processing 
technologies, Hitachi Chemical is developing highly reliable advanced 
components and systems that address customer needs in a diverse 
spectrum of �elds including automobiles, industrial energy, electronic 
devices and life science.

Slurry for chemical mechani-
cal planarization 

Epoxy molding 
compounds

Food wrapping �lms

Photosensitive dry �lms 
for printed wiring boards

Optically clear adhesive 
�lms 

IC tags (RFID tags)

Copper-clad laminates for 
multilayer printed wiring 
boards

Die bonding �lms

Lithium-ion battery 
anode materials

Resins for paints

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Technologies and Products that Support Everyday Life

5 ANNUAL REPORT  2013



We provide backdoor modules, 
automotive batteries and eco car 
battery materials that help improve
fuel ef�ciency. 

We provide brake parts to stop safely 
and surface antennas that measure 
the distance between vehicles.

We provide products for use in 
long-life, energy-saving lighting.

We provide the �lms that 
connect solar cell elec-
trodes.

We provide materials 
for use in PET examina-
tions (one method in 
the diagnosis of cancer).

We provide products 
that help lubricate 
the joints of 
construction 
equipment.

Wiring boards used in 
arti�cial satellites that 
offer high reliability 
even in a vacuum.

LCD TVs

We provide materials including �lms 
that are used in the manufacture of 
high-precision LCD TVs.

Automobiles and eco cars

LED lighting

Wind power generation

Roofs of homes

Plastic back door modules

GSO single crystals

Automobile 
batteries

Lithium-ion battery carbon anode 
materials for electric vehicles

Surface antennas

Axle bearings (powder 
metal products)

High thermal conductivity 
adhesive sheets

Moisture-proof insulating 
materials

Adhesive �lms Anisotropic conductive 
�lms

Conductive �lms 

Carbon brushes Electrical insulating 
varnishes

Power storage systems Multi-wire boards

We provide products 
for use in battery 
carts.

White epoxy molding 
compounds

We play a role in ensuring the 
correct �ow of electric power 
throughout power generators.

Battery passenger cart system

R
E

S
U
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F
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E
R

A
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N

Disk brake pads

Power shovelsGolf courses

Arti�cial satellitesSupply of electric power

Hospitals

Automobile safety

We provide systems that help 
store the low-cost electric power 
generated during off-peak 
periods for supply and use 
during peak periods.
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22Hitachi Storage Battery (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of batteries

23Hong Kong AIC Limited
Marketing of printed wiring boards

24Hitachi Powdered Metals (Singapore)
 Pte. Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of powder metal products

25Hitachi Powdered Metals 
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of powder metal products

26Hitachi Powdered Metals (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of powder metal products

27PT Hitachi Powdered Metals Indonesia
Manufacturing and marketing of powder metal products

28Foshan J.B. Automotive Products Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

29Hitachi Chemical Co. (Hong Kong) Limited
Marketing of Hitachi Chemical Group products

30Hitachi Chemical (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Slitting operation of anisotropic conductive films for 
displays, marketing of functional materials

31Hitachi Chemical (China) Co., Ltd.*1

Expand the business in China through strategic 
strengthening of the control of operations, marketing, 
technical management, finance and governance within 
the Hitachi Chemical Group companies in China

32Hitachi Chemical (Chongqing) Co., Ltd.
Slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive dry films 
for printed wiring boards

13 Hitachi Chemical Techno Service Co., Ltd.
Outsourcing of distribution, testing, and other busi-
ness services

14 Nikka Tochu Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of coated Sands for 
molding

15 Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd.
Marketing of functional materials, advanced compo-
nents and systems, and other products

16 Hitachi Kasei Business Service Co., Ltd.
Leasing of personal computers and other office 
equipment, outsourcing of patent application related 
businesses

17 Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials
 (Kyushu) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of epoxy molding com-
pounds for semiconductors and  cleaning sheets for 
semiconductor encapsulating molds

18 Hitachi Chemical Automotive
 Products Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of plastic interior / 
exterior automotive parts

19 Hitachi Chemical Filtec Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of food wrapping films

20Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of carbon products

Asia
21 Hitachi Storage Battery (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of batteries and plastic 
products

Japan
1 Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

2 Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.  
Manufacturing and marketing of batteries and
plastic products

3 Shin-Kobe Platechs Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of plastic products

4 Shin-Kobe Techno Service Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of batteries and plastic 

products

5 Hitachi AIC Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of capacitors

6 Hitachi Battery Sales & Service Co., Ltd.
Marketing and service of batteries, electric equipment 
and golf carts

7 Hitachi Chemical Electronics Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing of printed wiring boards; manufacturing and 
marketing of instruments and devices

8 Yamagishi AIC Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring boards

9 Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of powder metal products

10 Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

11 Namie Japan Brake Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

12 Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of adhesives and syn-
thetic resin products

1 2

12

5
15
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16
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4 11
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20

38
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25 28
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41 51
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50
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49
47 34

42

30

37

44
4336

45
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31 46 48
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33 402622

Hitachi Chemical is actively developing global businesses in an effort to steadily capture 
the demand in emerging countries and other markets.

Global Business Expansion

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

13
14
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33Hitachi Chemical Automotive
 Products (Thailand) Company Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of automotive interior / 
exterior plastic molded products

34Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials
 (Korea) Co., Ltd.
Processing of photosensitive dry fi lms for printed wiring 
boards and marketing of functional materials

35Hitachi Chemical (Selangor) Sdn. Bhd.
Manufacturing and marketing of epoxy molding com-
pounds for semiconductors

36Hitachi Chemical (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring boards

37Hitachi Chemical Co., (Taiwan) Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of printed wiring boards, 
slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive dry 
fi lms for printed wiring boards

38Japan Brake (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

39Hitachi Chemical India Private Limited*2

Manufacturing and marketing of powder metal products

40 Hitachi Chemical (Thailand) Co., Ltd.*3

Marketing of advanced components and systems

41Hitachi Chemical (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of photosensitive dry 
fi lms for printed wiring boards and electrical insulating 
varnishes

42Hitachi Chemical International Co.,
 (Taiwan) Ltd.
Marketing of functional materials

43Hitachi Chemical Asia-Pacifi c Pte. Ltd.
Marketing of functional materials

44Hitachi Chemical (Johor) Sdn. Bhd.
Manufacturing and marketing of photosensitive dry 
fi lms for printed wiring boards and electrical insulating 
varnishes

45Hitachi Chemical (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
Manufacturing and marketing of epoxy molding com-
pounds and die bonding materials for semiconductors

46Hitachi Chemical (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of epoxy molding 
compounds for semiconductors and photosensitive dry 
fi lms for printed wiring boards

47Hitachi Chemical (Yantai) Co., Ltd.
Slitting operation and marketing of photosensitive dry 
fi lms for printed wiring boards

48Hitachi Chemical (Nantong) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of advanced perfor-
mance resins and chemical materials

49Hitachi Chemical Automotive
 Products (Zhengzhou) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of automotive interior / 
exterior plastic molded products

50Allied JB Friction Private Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials for 
motorcycles and automobiles

51Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials
 (Guangzhou) Limited.
Manufacturing and marketing of copper-clad laminates 
for printed wiring boards

52Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials
 (Hong Kong) Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of copper clad laminates 
for printed wiring boards

53Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials
 (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing, marketing and development of elec-
tronics materials

Others
54Hitachi Powdered Metals (USA), Inc.

Manufacturing and marketing of powder metal products

55Hitachi Chemical Co. America, Ltd.
Marketing of functional materials as well as advanced 
components and systems

56Hitachi Chemical Diagnostics, Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of diagnostic reagents

57Hitachi Chemical Europe GmbH
Marketing of functional materials

58Hitachi Chemical Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Manufacturing and marketing of friction materials

59Hitachi Chemical Research Center, Inc.
R&D in biotechnology

58

54

59
5655

Laboratories /
Development Dept.

of Business Divisions

Hitachi Chemical - SJTU 
Research & 

Development Center

Hitachi Chemical 
Research Center, Inc.

Electronics-related 
materials

Life Sciences
Japan

U.S.China

BAn R&D Structure across Three Core Locations BTrends in Net Sales by Region

BNet Sales by Region (Fiscal 2012)

VBusiness development in Japan VBusiness development overseas 
VRegional headquarters (*1: Regional headquarters for China; *2: Regional headquarters for India; *3: Regional headquarters for ASEAN) 8ANNUAL REPORT  2013
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Hitachi Chemical aims to 
grow in tandem with global 
society for the next 50 
years, while accelerating 
the integration of business 
and corporate social 
responsibility.

TOP MESSAGE

President and Chief Executive Of�cer

Kazuyuki Tanaka
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CSR Medium-term Roadmap: 

Stage 2Management Policies

Key
Business

Fields

Sustainable Development of Business
by 3 Stances

Business Reform

Organizational Reform 

Human Resource Reform

Business Stance

Corporate Stance

Individual Stance

Promotion of Important Business
by 3 Reforms

Last year, Hitachi Chemical published its �rst integrated annual and sustainability report as 
a part of an initiative to integrate business  and corporate social responsibility (CSR). 
Could you tell us more about this?

A new medium-term management plan was launched in April 2013. Can you elaborate on 
the new plan while discussing achievements under the previous one?

TO
P

 M
E

S
S

A
G

E

Q1

Q2

I have always thought that an integrated report made sense, be-
cause it offers readers for the �rst time a view of Hitachi Chemi-
cal from the integrated perspective of its business activities and 
CSR. It shows that we have a robust �nancial position and have 
worked hard to gain the trust of society. I believe it also moti-
vates our employees to perform better. Last year, my fourth year 
as President, we were �nally able to put together the integrated 
report, but I feel there is still much work to be done in order to 
achieve true integration.

For the Hitachi Chemical Group, CSR is simply what we 
do every day as a corporation to realize our corporate vision. 
While striving to astonish under the corporate slogan of Work-
ing On Wonders, our mission is to continuously provide new 
value to our customers and society as a whole. Since assuming 

of�ce as President in April 2009, I have upheld three man-
agement reform policies: “Business Reform” “Organizational 
Reform” and “Individual Reform.” Meanwhile, the three 
stances – “Business Stance,” “Corporate Stance” and “Individ-
ual Stance” – that have been introduced since �scal 2011 in our 
CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2, are a reorganization of 
the three management reform policies from a sustainability per-
spective. These three stances indicate internally and externally 
the direction we are taking in integrating business operations 
and CSR. Social responsibility is also becoming more important 
throughout the entire value chain. We must strengthen efforts 
to integrate business activities and CSR with our business part-
ners, in addition to group companies.

The Hitachi Chemical Group’s previous three-year plan, which 
stemmed from �scal 2010 to �scal 2012, was drawn up in the 
latter half of 2009 amid signs of a recovery in earnings follow-
ing the collapse of Lehman Brothers. Although targets were 
achieved in �scal 2010, net sales and operating income fell short 
of our forecasts for �scal 2011 due to the Great East Japan Earth-
quake, nuclear reactor meltdowns and �ooding in Thailand and 
for �scal 2012 owing to weak demand in the PC market.

Although confronted by these signi�cant external factors, 
the Hitachi Chemical Group also lacked the ability and agility to 
create new products and businesses, and was unable to fully tap 
into demand in emerging countries, a key driver of growth, in the 
high functional materials and automotive parts business �elds. 
Within this context, we have clearly identi�ed measures and issues 
to tackle under the new medium-term management plan.

The basic policies of the new medium-term management 
plan are to execute a growth strategy of developing new high-
end products and expanding globally, while strengthening the 
structure through cost reforms. Over the next three years, Hita-
chi Chemical aims to attain growth in both sales and income by 
managing operations under these two basic policies.

Our growth strategy is to accelerate the pace of develop-
ment of new high-end products differentiated by material tech-
nologies while accurately grasping changes in the market. At 
the same time, it is important to release our products, which we 
�ne-tune to match requirements for quality and price in each 
region of the world, in new emerging markets with growth 
potential by further re�ning our cost competitiveness. In order 
to strengthen new product development capabilities, Hitachi 
Chemical’s New Business Development Headquarters is tasked 
with the mission of creating new products and businesses. To 
ful�ll this mission, it coordinates efforts among our research 
laboratories in charge of R&D, the R&D Strategy Of�ce where 
new technologies and businesses are discovered and work is 
undertaken on joint development with external research institu-
tions, as well as the New Business Development Center that is 
responsible for commercializing new business ideas. The �rst 
and foremost mission of our research laboratories is to create 
new businesses through R&D into new, next-generation and 
next-next-generation technologies and products. Moreover, 
our research laboratories are also responsible for R&D into new 
products with superior market competitiveness in existing busi-
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nesses, and then pushing these new products out of the labo-
ratory and onto the marketplace. In other words, our research 
laboratories go beyond pure research and play a key role in cre-
ating new businesses.

In line with its growth strategy, Hitachi Chemical concen-
trates investments on markets with growth potential such as 
the environment & energy and life sciences. Investment projects 
are carefully screened and selected based on policies tailored to 
each business �eld. To boost earnings potential, management 
started using return on invested capital (ROIC) as a benchmark 
to manage investments. As a result, we now analyze invest-

ments at the business unit level, instead of looking at invest-
ment returns on an individual project basis.

As for structural reinforcement, Hitachi Chemical has tak-
en a two-pronged approach with business structure reforms, 
which include expanding new products and businesses and 
shifting operations overseas, and work�ow process reforms, 
which entail reducing labor costs by installing robotics, out-
sourcing logistics operations, and streamlining and standard-
izing processes for marketing and order acceptance. Through 
these reforms, the Group aims to create value for its customers 
more quickly.                                         Related information P.17-18

Can you go into more detail about initiatives undertaken in �scal 2012 and the direc-
tion of future efforts to integrate business activities and CSR from three perspectives: 
Business Reform, Organizational Reform and Human Resource Reform, starting �rst 
with Business Reform and Business Stance?

Next, please review the highlights of the Organizational Reform 
and Corporate Stance policies.

Q3

Q4

The Hitachi Chemical Group is in the business of making ma-
terials that are enhanced with various functions to satisfy the 
requirements of its customers, by taking basic inputs such as 
organic and inorganic materials and synthesizing and processing 
them into value-added products. The Hitachi Chemical Group 
handles a large number of petrochemical products, in other 
words products that are derived from crude oil. With this in 
mind, it is vital that we �nd ways to effectively use limited natu-
ral resources and develop advanced technologies for recycling 
products. We view this as an opportunity to aggressively cre-
ate new businesses, such as through higher penetration rates 
and utilization ef�ciency of renewable energy, by leveraging our 
broad array of technologies and materials. In order to advance 
along with global society , Hitachi Chemical must constantly be 
on the move, innovating and creating new technologies. We call 
this sustainable engineering. The sales ratio of the Eco-products 
created from this process—what we refer to as sustainable 

engineering products—to total sales is one of the key perfor-
mance indicators (KPIs) that we monitor. In �scal 2012, this ratio 
rose slightly to 85.4%, from 85.1% in the previous �scal year. 
By �scal 2015, the �nal year of the CSR Medium-term Roadmap: 
Stage 2, we aim to increase this ratio to 88%.

In �scal 2012, Hitachi Chemical accelerated the globaliza-
tion of operations, updating its manufacturing bases and ex-
panding its production capacity mainly in emerging countries. 
We aim to spur further growth in net sales and reap returns on 
these investments. Meanwhile, Hitachi Chemical will continue 
investing in R&D, keeping the R&D budget above 5% of net 
sales, in order to speed up the development of products with 
growth potential. At the same time, we will prioritize spending 
on R&D staff in the environment & energy business �eld, which 
includes energy storage devices business.    

Related information P.23-28

As I discussed in the previous question about the previous me-
dium-term management plan, the Hitachi Chemical Group must 
undergo organizational reforms in order to be able to quick-
ly identify changes in the market and act quickly to develop 
new products and nurture new businesses to realize stronger 
growth. To this end, Hitachi Chemical has been building out 
a regional headquarters system in a bid to create a network-
based management system tailored to each region. Through 
the uni�ed management of bases in each region, the Company 
aims to improve governance and ultimately establish a �owing 
sequence of functional processes from marketing to develop-
ment and production. After establishing a regional headquar-
ters in China in �scal 2011, Hitachi Chemical began to build out 
regional headquarters functions in Thailand and India in �scal 
2012. We also added marketing functions to the regional head-
quarters in China.

Another example of organizational reforms is the business 

integration with Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd., which 
we turned into a wholly owned subsidiary last year. In the in-
dustrial energy �eld, demand has increased for backup power 
sources for medical institutions and other facilities after the 
Great East Japan Earthquake, and needs are growing for level-
ing the supply of electricity generated from renewable sources. 
We are steadily tapping into this demand by leveraging syner-
gies from the materials technologies of Hitachi Chemical and 
the storage device technologies of Shin-Kobe Electric Machin-
ery Co., Ltd. In �scal 2012, we established the Energy Devices & 
System Business Headquarters and the Energy Devices and Ma-
terials Development Center of the New Business Development 
Headquarters, putting in place a structure for targeting sharply 
growing demand in the industrial energy market. Hitachi 
Chemical is in a position to respond quickly to future trends and 
changes in the marketplace.                 Related information P.29-34

TOP MESSAGE
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I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt ap-
preciation to all of our stakeholders for their support as Hita-
chi Chemical turns 50 years old. We are ready to embark on 
a journey of growth over the next 50 years, and look forward 
to celebrating a bright future on our 100th anniversary. Keep 
expecting the best from the Hitachi Chemical Group.

Please discuss the Human Resource Reform 
and Individual Stance policies.

In conclusion, do you have a 
message for all stakeholders?

How did Hitachi Chemical celebrate 
its 50th anniversary?

Q5

Q7

Q6

Human resources are our most important asset and the primary 
engine of growth for a corporation. The Hitachi Chemical Group 
has held Town Meetings since fi scal 2010 in the belief that it 
is essential for all of its employees to share, communicate and 
work together on the same fundamental management plans 
and business strategies. Executive offi cers from Hitachi Chemi-
cal visit business locations inside and outside Japan to hold 
workshops and exchange opinions with employees in a face-
to-face setting. We hope to provide employees with a deeper 
understanding of management through these dialogues. The 
Hitachi Chemical Group’s ratio of overseas sales to total sales 
has grown to more than 46% and the total number of employ-
ees now almost reaches 18,000 people. We must equip our em-
ployees with the knowledge and skills necessary to compete on 
the world stage, and allow them to grow on their own through 
trial and error. We strive to nurture these kinds of employees, 
which we call World Class Professionals (WCPs), through a 

variety of educational programs. In fi scal 2012, we launched 
the Global Coaching Program as a part of efforts to promote 
dialogue across organizational boundaries, and introduced KT 
Method training programs at overseas group companies.

Globalization has made it imperative that companies as-
sess employees fairly without regard to their gender, nation-
ality, or age and delegate work to the most capable people. 
Hitachi Chemical, for example, believes in providing local staff 
with opportunities to advance to a top position in their region 
as quickly as possible. In this context, the Company created a 
global personnel evaluation system in fi scal 2012, and deployed 
it at Hitachi Chemical and some Group companies in October 
2013. The system is initially set up solely for managers, but will 
eventually be rolled out to all employees.

 Related information P.35-40

2012 marked the 50th year of operations for Hitachi Chemical, a 
major milestone. To commemorate this occasion, we held com-
munication workshops for all group employees with the aim 
of sharing our vision of where we want to be 50 years from 
now. Through these workshops, we have planted the seeds for 
growth over the next 50 years, inspiring each and every em-
ployee to polish their ability to “create wonder.” These work-
shops were also an opportunity to provide more impetus for our 
Business Reforms, Organizational Reforms and Human Resource 
Reforms, as well as to shore up our foundation through work-
fl ow process reforms.

After much debate, our executive offi cers have drafted a 
message from management to hand out to employees at these 
communication workshops, explaining where we want the Hi-
tachi Chemical Group to be in 50 years. Within this message, 

management wrote the following to summarize its ambitions 
for the next 50 years:

EXPAND our business beyond “Chemical“
to create value for future .

While chemicals are currently our core business, this state-
ment declares the kind of future we envision for the Hitachi 
Chemical Group as we step into new fi elds and offer optimal 
solutions for society and develop optimal solutions for yet-to-
be discovered problems. When people of the future look back 
50 years to us in fi scal 2012, I am convinced they will say “that 
is the year the Hitachi Chemical Group began to truly embrace 
globalization.”                                       Related information P.19-22
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The slogan is a short, symbolic representation of the company's corporate vision that reads, 
"With a pioneering spirit to explore uncharted areas, we develop innovative product solutions 

in a timely manner that provide optimum value for our customers and society."

Hitachi Chemical Group has brought to market innovative products, 
one after another, under its vision of contributing 

to society through the development of superior technologies and products. 
We hope the new corporate slogan will help to better describe our corporate vision, 

stance and business activities to our customers, shareholders and the societies in our business regions.

Hitachi Chemical helps customers solve issues related to product 

development and manufacturing from an all-encompassing perspective 

on materials and technologies. 

At the root of all of our activities is our vision of contributing to society 

through the development of superior technologies and products. 

Hitachi Chemical celebrated its 50th anniversary in 2012. 

To create a brighter future in the next half-century, Hitachi Chemical 

aims to be one step ahead of the times by going beyond chemicals and 

continuously expanding into new business �elds. 

Our vision is to contribute to society through the development of superior technologies and products.

Our mission is to create new and innovative "Value" as a frontrunner.

At all times, the key value we heed and promote is "Trust."

Corporate Slogan

Corporate Vision

STRATEGY
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Internal Factors

Business Reform 
+ 

Business Stance

External Factors

Our vision is to contribute to society through the development of superior technologies and products.

Our mission is to create new and innovative "Value" as a frontrunner.

At all times, the key value we heed and promote is "Trust."

The Hitachi Chemical Group creates value for all stakeholders by realizing its corporate vision. In order to create value, the Hitachi 
Chemical Group has de�ned issues that need to be addressed with priority, analyzed external and internal conditions and narrowed 
them down to the 12 most important issues. We present these issues in the following sections of this report. 

Work diligently to strengthen its presence and 
standing within capital markets while enhanc-
ing its corporate value by actively engaging 
in open and timely information disclosure and 
promoting communication with shareholders 
and investors.

Continue to contribute to local communities, 
residents and the international community 
while appreciating the conditions of regions 
in which we do business.

Develop next-generation technologies and 
ensure the stable supply of reliable products 
through virtuous partnerships with suppliers. 
Identify and respond to risks throughout the 
entire value chain.

Adhere strictly to all relevant statutory and 
regulatory requirements of countries and re-
gions in which we do business and ful�ll obli-
gations as a good corporate citizen.

Respect human rights, promote individual 
growth through education and provide a 
pleasant and safe workplace environment.

With conservation of the global environment 
a priority issue for management, engage in 
responsible technological development, pro-
duction activities and sustainable engineering.

VTechnological development capabilities backed by Material System 
Solutions (MSS)

VAnnual town meetings are held at all business locations to promote 
dialogue and unify group management

VPromotion of diversity management as a business strategy

VMarket expansion in growth �elds (environment & energy, etc.)

VElevated global awareness of Hitachi Chemical in environment & 
energy and life sciences �elds

VMobility of global human resources

VGlobal business expansionP

P.25
VStrengthening technological 
   development capabilities 

P

P.26

VSustainable engineering 

P

P.27

VCustomer satisfaction    

P

P.28

VOrganizational Changes in Re-
sponse to Market Changes  

P

P.31

VIntellectual property strategyP

P.32
VStrategic communications with 

shareholders and investors  

P

P.33

VEnvironmental and 
   occupational safety and health 

management                   

P

P.34

VEducation, Training and 
Evaluation of World-class 
Human Resources           

P

P.37

VPromoting Dialogue        

P

P.38

VDiversity Management    

P

P.39

VCo-existing with Local 
Communities                  

P

P.40

VNeed to focus more on value chain management, including the envi-
ronment, human rights and occupational safety and health

VNeed to strengthen group management due to rapid globalization of 
operations

VIssues with personnel exchanges between group companies due to 
globalization

VIntensifying competition in global operations

VIntensifying competition between nations from globalization

VNeed stronger response to risks particular to a region in line with 
globalization

Creating Value for Stakeholders

Outline of Internal and External Factors  *See P.23, P.29 and P.35 for details.

S trengths O pportunities

W eaknesses T hreats

Main Issues Facing the Hitachi Chemical Group

Shareholders and 
Investors

Society

Customers and 
Suppliers

Governmental and 
Public Authorities

Employees

Global Environment

Organizational Reform  
+ 

Corporate Stance

Human Resource Reform 
+ 

Individual Stance
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Business Reform
+

Business Stance

Organizational Reform 
+ 

Corporate Stance

Human Resource Reform
 + 

Individual Stance

VBusiness growth in emerging countries

VTechnologies backed by Material System Solutions (MSS)

VReview R&D resource allocation

VStrengthen organizational structure of research 
laboratories

VReinforce development capabilities for core 
technologies

VEnvironmentally friendly manufacturing

VOperation of quality management system

VImprove chemical substance management

VHold group environment and CSR meetings

VBolster intellectual property strategy

VReduce environmental impact on an ongoing basis

VPromote occupational safety and health management

VHold town meetings and 50th anniversary 
workshops 

VPromote dialog between management and 
employees across organizational boundaries 

VExpand globalization of investor relations 

VShin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. made into 
wholly owned subsidiary

VPromote diversity to expand opportunities for 
utilizing people from diverse backgrounds

VFoster World Class Professionals

VEncourage use of English as a common 
communication tool

VCreate a global personnel evaluation system

VLaunch a global coaching program

VIntroduce KT Method training program

VStrengthen technological 
development capabilities

VConduct analytical survey 
of CSR questionnaire

VImprove relationship with 
raw material suppliers

VSupport environmental 
management at suppliers

VShare information 
better by improving 
communications

VRespect for human 
rights, ensure 
occupational safety and 
health

VPromote higher 
awareness with Hitachi 
Chemical Group 
Supply-Chain CSR 
Deployment Guidebook 

Hitachi Chemical Group

Production SalesR&D
Suppliers

Governance
VOngoing compliance training and auditing
VContinue to base activities on internal rules and
   educate employees about them

Shareholders and Investors

Actions in FY2012

Main Issues Facing the 
Hitachi Chemical Group

VGlobal business expansion
VStrengthening technological 
   development capabilities

VSustainable engineering

VCustomer satisfaction

VOrganizational changes in 
response to market changes 

VIntellectual property strategy
VStrategic communications with 

shareholders and investors
VEnvironmental and occupational 

safety and health management

VEducation,training and 
evaluation of world-class human 
resources

VPromoting dialog 
VDiversity management
VCo-existing with local 

communities

At the Hitachi Chemical Group, we endeavor to maintain constructive relationships with all of our stakeholders through 
the integration of our business activities and CSR, thereby contributing to the advancement of a sustainable society through 
the creation and provision of value. 

The Hitachi Chemical Group’s Value Creation Process

STRATEGY
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Business Reform
+

Business Stance

Organizational Reform 
+ 

Corporate Stance

Human Resource Reform
 + 

Individual Stance

VBusiness growth in emerging countries

VTechnologies backed by Material System Solutions (MSS)

VReview R&D resource allocation

VStrengthen organizational structure of research 
laboratories

VReinforce development capabilities for core 
technologies

VEnvironmentally friendly manufacturing

VOperation of quality management system

VImprove chemical substance management

VHold group environment and CSR meetings

VBolster intellectual property strategy

VReduce environmental impact on an ongoing basis

VPromote occupational safety and health management

VHold town meetings and 50th anniversary 
workshops 

VPromote dialog between management and 
employees across organizational boundaries 

VExpand globalization of investor relations 

VShin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. made into 
wholly owned subsidiary

VPromote diversity to expand opportunities for 
utilizing people from diverse backgrounds

VFoster World Class Professionals

VEncourage use of English as a common 
communication tool

VCreate a global personnel evaluation system

VLaunch a global coaching program

VIntroduce KT Method traning program

VStrengthen technological 
development capabilities

VConduct analytical survey 
of CSR questionnaire

VImprove relationship with 
raw material suppliers

VDevelop sustainable 
engineering products

VExpand Material System 
Solutions (MSS)

VSearch for latent needs 
through technology 
caravans

VHelp reduce CO2 
emissions by developing 
operations in 
environment & energy 
�eld

VExpand hiring in 
emerging countries

VProvide products and 
technologies that 
contribute to society

VOrganizational reforms in 
tune with market trends

VOperation of quality 
management system

VDiligently reply to all 
customer inquiries

VContinue to provide 
sales training programs 
to improve precision in 
meeting customer needs

VMaintain constructive 
relationship with society 
through appropriate 
information disclosure 
and communications

VImprove production 
methods in response to 
climate change

VPromote activities 
to prevent industrial 
accidents

VContinue to encourage 
social contributions from 
employees acting as 
volunteers

VCo-exist with local 
communities through 
social contribution 
activities

VSupport environmental 
management at suppliers

VShare information 
better by improving 
communications

VRespect for human 
rights, ensure 
occupational safety and 
health

VPromote higher 
awareness with Hitachi 
Chemical Group 
Supply-Chain CSR 
Deployment Guidebook 

Hitachi Chemical Group

Production SalesR&D
Suppliers Customers End users and 

Society

Governance
VOngoing compliance training and auditing
VContinue to base activities on internal rules and
   educate employees about them

VOngoing improvements based on
   information security policy

Shareholders and Investors

VHold seminars about Antimonopoly Act 
VEnsure activities comply with security trade control regulations

Actions in FY2012

Main Issues Facing the 
Hitachi Chemical Group

Actions under 
new medium-term 
management plan

VGlobal business expansion
VStrengthening technological 
   development capabilities

VSustainable engineering

VCustomer satisfaction

VOrganizational changes in 
response to market changes 

VIntellectual property strategy
VStrategic communications with 

shareholders and investors
VEnvironmental and occupational 

safety and health management

VUse materials technologies 
to differentiate products in 
high-end �elds 

VFull-scale entry into energy 
storage devices business

VFurther strengthen materials 
technological capabilities

VReinforce production and 
marketing activities in overseas 
regions with growth potential

VBuild a personnel platform 

VFoster a culture of open 
discussion and taking on 
challenges

VBolster local marketing 
functions through overseas 
regional headquarters

VM&A promotion

VFoster World Class Professionals

VIntroduce a fair, global human 
resources evaluation system

VEducation,training and 
evaluation of world-class human 
resources

VPromoting dialog 
VDiversity management
VCo-existing with local 

communities

Creating 
value for 
stakeholders  
by realizing 
our corporate 
vision

Sustainable Business
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Guided by its corporate vision, the Hitachi Chemical Group formulated a new three-year medium-term management plan to steer 
management and business decisions in each �scal year of the plan. Next, we re�ect on the previous medium-term management plan 
that ran from �scal 2010 to �scal 2012 and then discuss the new medium-term management plan that started in �scal 2013.

VAchieve growth in revenue and income by differentiating high-end products with material technolo-
gies and by expanding globally

VStrengthen the organizational structure through restructuring

Business Strategies

Although targets were achieved in �scal 2010, the �rst year of the plan, net sales and operating income fell 
short of our forecasts for �scal 2011, owing to the Great East Japan Earthquake, nuclear reactor meltdowns and 
�ooding in Thailand, and for �scal 2012, owing to weak demand in the PC and other electronics markets and 
automotive-related industries. Although these external factors had a signi�cant impact, the Hitachi Chemical 
Group also lacked the ability and agility to create new products and businesses, and was unable to fully tap into 
demand in emerging countries, a key driver of growth, in the high functional materials and automotive parts 
business �elds. Within this context, we have clearly identi�ed issues to tackle and formulated speci�c measures 
to take under the new medium-term management plan.

Our growth strategy for the high functional materials business is to focus on launching 
new high-margin products in the high-end �eld while improving our ability to adapt to 
trends in markets and technologies. We also aim to expand sales of high-value-added 
products in growth regions such as emerging markets. Our goal is to increase pro�t po-
tential and turn this business into an earnings driver for the Hitachi Chemical Group.

In the automotive parts business, we plan to generate a steady return on investments in 
new production bases around the world and on investments to expand existing bases. 
Our product development program, driven by materials technologies, will focus on pre-
cisely understanding market needs for energy conservation, environmental friendliness, 
light weight, and convenience in order to increase sales over the long term.

We aim to reinforce the foundation of the energy storage devices business to prepare for 
full-�edged growth from �scal 2016 onward, while providing solutions to customer needs 
through four kinds of storage devices: lead-acid batteries, industrial lithium-ion batteries, 
lithium-ion capacitors and capacitors.

Centered on operations related to allergy diagnosis reagents and diagnosis systems, the 
Company will explore new business �elds, such as sanitary products, where it can lever-
age its materials technologies with the aim of nurturing them into future core businesses. 

Review of Previous Medium-term Management Plan (Fiscal 2010-2012)

New Medium-term Management Plan

Energy Storage Devices 
Business

Life Sciences 
Business

Automotive Parts 
Business

High Functional 
Materials Business

Basic Policies

Growth Strategies

STRATEGY

New Medium-term Management Plan (Fiscal 2013-2015)

17 ANNUAL REPORT  2013



BCorporate R&D staff allocation

BNet sales

Net sales (Billions of yen)Ratio of operating 
income to net sales

464.7

69.3
72.5

110.0

137.5

335.0

118.0

303.0

6.2 6.5
17.5

112.0

277.2

5.1%

6.2%
10% or more

500

600

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2015 target

Life sciences

High Functional Materials

Automotive Parts

Energy Storage Devices
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R&D Strategy

Investment Strategy

Hitachi Chemical concentrates R&D resources on new �elds including the environment & energy and life sciences. 
As a part of this strategy under the new medium-term management plan, we will reassign corporate R&D staff to 
the environment & energy �elds.

Our investment strategy entails the stringent selection of investment projects with a focus on allocating 
resources to growth markets. To boost earnings potential, management started using Return On Invested 
Capital (ROIC) as a benchmark to manage investments. We monitor return on investments at the business 
unit level, in addition to looking at returns on an individual project basis.

Hitachi Chemical aims to reduce its cost 
of goods sold and selling, general and ad-
ministrative (SG&A) expenses and create a 
leaner corporate structure by thoroughly 
implementing cost reforms at the business 
and management levels.

Cost Reforms

Target Summaries

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2015 target

Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2013 target Fiscal 2015 target

46.7Billions of yen 38.5Billions of yen 48.0Billions of yen

61%

23.7
(51%)15.5

(33%)

5.5
(14%)

7.0
(14%)

5.0
(13%)

10.0
(21%)

13.0
(27%)9.0

(24%)

19.0
(49%)

18.0
(38%)

2.3
(5％)

5.2
(11%)

45% 50%

30%
34%

24%

3%

19%
10%

12%

10%

2%

Information communications

Environment & energy

Life sciences

Core technologies

High Functional Materials

Automotive Parts

Energy Storage Devices

Others

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2015 target

Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2013 target Fiscal 2015 target

46.7Billions of yen 38.5Billions of yen 48.0Billions of yen

61%

23.7
(51%)15.5

(33%)

5.5
(14%)

7.0
(14%)

5.0
(13%)

10.0
(21%)

13.0
(27%)9.0

(24%)

19.0
(49%)

18.0
(38%)

2.3
(5％)

5.2
(11%)

45% 50%

30%
34%

24%

3%

19%
10%

12%

10%

2%

Information communications

Environment & energy

Life sciences

Core technologies

High Functional Materials

Automotive Parts

Energy Storage Devices

Others

464.7
Billions of yen

600
Billions of yen

18% 77% 5%

10%
or more74%16%

SG&A Expenses

Cost of Goods Sold

Operating Income 

Fiscal 2012

Fiscal 2015 
target

BCapital expenditure plan

New Medium-term Management Plan (Fiscal 2013-2015)
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Entire Group Workforce’s Participation in Management
To encourage the participation of all employees in management, a communication workshop—in which the entire Group workforce could participate —was held 
following the 50th anniversary. For the event, each of the participants expressed his or her thoughts about the future in One Word (P.20), derived from their 
respective feelings about the management message, and shared them with senior management. The work of art in the background of the photo above is a com-
munication art photo mosaic created from images next 50 years of Hitachi Chemical. The artwork comprises photos from 16,341 employees, or 96% of the total 
workforce. Some of these are at the foot of pages 20 to 22.

Moving Ahead the Next 50 Years
Marking its 50th anniversary, the year 2012 represented a major milestone for the Hitachi Chemical Group. A manage-
ment workshop was held in which all executive directors, including the president, discussed the past, present and future 
of the Hitachi Chemical Group, and senior management’s thoughts were summed up in a management message. In this 
special feature, we convey the impressions aired during an exchange of opinions between key �gures and Executive 
Of�cers that used the management message as a basis for discussion.

Stakeholders’ Dialogue 

Management Message Looks to the Future

“What will Hitachi 
Chemical be aiming 
for over the next 
50 years and how 
will it face up to 
those aims?”

VEXPAND our business beyond “Chemical” to create value for the future

VDISCOVER the world’s future needs, EXCEED our customers’ expectations

VINTEGRATE our knowledge and technical expertise in materials to meet 
   our customers’ needs

VStay INNOVATIVE to keep ahead of fast-changing markets 

VHitachi Chemical‘s DNA = Pioneering Spirit, Flexible, Customer-centric
   —  Innovation is a never-ending cycle —

Our Business

Our Value

Our People

Our DNA

SPECIAL FEATURE
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but also environmental, social, and governance (ESG) informa-
tion. Although the weighting of ESG information may differ 
depending on the particular sector or business, we can expect 
investors to highly value Hitachi Chemical when disclosing more 
information regarding its energy storage devices business.

Kanai: From the investor perspective, in the case of social issues 
that include those in the environmental and energy fi elds, many 
other companies will be eyeing the same fi elds, in other words 
because these are growth areas. A company that clearly possess-
es unique core competencies and of course has a clear picture of 
how they will be utilized cannot very easily tie them into profi t 
amid intense competition if that company has no mechanism for 
ensuring profi t built into its own management system.

Hitachi Chemical’s medium-term management plans will 
be incorporating the introduction of Return On Invested Capital 
(ROIC) as an investment indicator to enhance profi tability. As far 
as I am aware, this is the fi rst time this has been tried at a Japa-
nese chemical company. Expected to become established prac-
tice in the years to come, this move should further raise Hitachi 
Chemical’s profi tability.

Our Value
A marketing eye is indispensable in 
business-creating R&D

Uchimura: Hitachi Chemical is setting up a marketing role in its 
Research and Development Section. As it had proven diffi cult to 
forecast the market over the next 10 or 20 years, and develop-
ment can never keep pace with the needs of a market that is 
changing on a daily basis if you adopt a wait and see approach, 
we are now conducting training of marketing with experts.

Our Business
Leveraging its core competencies, Hitachi Chemical’s 
future business vision is revealed

Maruyama: Hitachi Chemical is mainly focused on the elec-
tronics and automotive fi elds. To remain sustainable, however, 
the Company remains aware of the need to get back to basics, 
of adding function to its core competencies in materials and 
technologies, and of providing high-end products in step with 
changes in its business environment. Emphasizing aspects of or-
ganizations that have a business perspective and those that take 
the environment as well as occupational safety and health into 
consideration, Hitachi Chemical is planning to place more of a 
focus on each of these areas.

In addition, while maintaining a common awareness, the 
employees underpinning Hitachi Chemical’s operations are con-
tinuing to reinvent themselves on a daily basis to become World 
Class Professionals that can take on the world.

Uchimura: Our future vision of the business  has Hitachi Chemi-
cal going beyond chemicals, expanding its business areas, and 
creating value for the future. This does not mean changing our  
chemical-based raw materials business and core competencies. 
In addition to providing materials as well as the processes for 
their use, steps have also been taken to expand business activities 
into such areas as effi cient parts assembly and modules. To give 
one example, I mean things like having integrated the energy 
storage devices business in which Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery 
was previously involved into Hitachi Chemical, to expand Hitachi 
Chemical’s materials business into the renewable energy fi eld.

Morisawa: In terms of the UN Principles for Responsible Invest-
ment, one criterion for determining which companies will proba-
bly survive over the long term uses not only fi nancial information 

Michiyo Morisawa
Japan Director of PRI, Japan Director of CDP
PhD University of Tokyo

Takao Kanai
Managing Director
Fundamental Analysis Citi Research
Citigroup Global Markets Japan Inc.

Each thought put into 
One Word

At the end of the communication work-
shop, each participant expressed his or her 
thought on the future by writing a single 
kanji character or word; we present some 
of them here. They represent the determi-
nation expressed by each and every Hitachi 
Chemical Group employee as they aim for 
the next 50 years.

“Improvement.” A key word for the Company to build a long, 
dynamic, and bright future; to respond to an ever-changing 
business environment; and to remain world class professional.

Shin (“Confi dence”). The future is anyone’s guess. That’s why 
it is important to maintain the belief that anything can be 
achieved if you try. If this mindset is linked to colleagues in 
whom we have complete faith then we can face any challenge 
and build a better future.

Sebastian Fine
Hitachi Chemical 
Europe GmbH

Shinichi Arai
Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd.
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Maruyama:  We recognize that our ability to link the Company’s 
technologies, or in other words its seeds, to the needs of custom-
ers through marketing is both a major challenge and critical issue.

Kanai: Also, as investors have a feel for and understand the un-
precedented changes in the market, it seems there is a possibil-
ity that management efforts of a company like yours would win 
approval. It’s vitally important that there is the system that can 
create new businesses.

Morisawa: Appearing only in quarterly �nancial analyses and 
taking time to produce results, the R&D portion is not easily eval-
uated. It is my belief that the mechanism for having R&D fairly 
assessed is responsible investment. Promoting the disclosure of 
information of a non-�nancial nature, such as R&D, could as a 
result be expected to attract more investment than before.

Uchimura: In addition, Hitachi Chemical makes it a point to 
conduct an environmental compatibility assessment at the 
time of each R&D design review. There are also instances 
where costs are reduced when environmentally conscious 
products are brought to the market. For example, modi�ca-
tions to manufacturing processes that result in lower energy 
consumption help to pare down costs at the same time. Mov-
ing forward, Hitachi Chemical is working diligently to promote 
environment-friendly management across the entire supply 
chain from procurement to product use by the customer.

Morisawa: Regarding supply chain management, increasing 
emphasis is also being placed on not only the environment, but 
also governance, labor, and employment practices of suppliers. 
It is desirable to visualize the associated risks and make procure-
ment traceable.

Maruyama: Customers are increasingly expecting us to monitor 
and manage our suppliers to address environmental concerns. In 
this regard, Hitachi Chemical has continued to conduct supplier 
surveys for some time and will do so in the future.

Morisawa: With activities precisely such as these, I think it per-
fectly �ne for Hitachi Chemical to be more proactive in its disclo-
sure of information. For progressive activities as well, stakehold-
ers can understand for the �rst time only when we communicate 
this through information disclosure.

Kanai: Outside Japan, and particularly when compared with 
Asian companies, what Japanese companies undertake as a mat-
ter of course will lead to reliability. After taking into consider-
ation product competitiveness, potential and pro�tability, these 
undertakings can be expected to become increasingly important 
going forward.

Our People
Human resources are very much a company asset. 
Educating employees who are capable of 
reinventing themselves every day

Maruyama: In step with globalization, the work conditions that 
satisfy employees that they can bene�t from working all over 
the world — and the environment for them to reinvent them-
selves and study on a daily basis — have to be created beyond 
borders. Therefore, with a view to standardizing an evaluation 
system at a global level, we will commence the operation of a 
new evaluation system from October 2013. Although I think it 
will prove very challenging, this is simply something we have to 
do. The plan is to gradually deploy the system overseas in the 
years to come.

I am involved in new product R&D. I chose idomu (meaning 
“to defy”) to convey my thoughts about defying the boundar-
ies of our existing business areas, of taking on the challenges 
of new �elds, and of creating new products that will be recog-
nized by customers for their value.

Kizuna (“Emotional Ties”) The importance of maintaining 
close ties was realized following the unprecedented disaster 
that struck Japan in 2011. So that Hitachi Chemical makes 
further advances over the next 50 years, I want us to ensure 
close ties as we globally move ahead arm in arm.

Uruoi (“Graceful”). I chose this character because I hope that 
the Hitachi Chemical Group will be still prosperous and grace-
ful in 50 year time.

Stakeholders’ Dialogue  Moving Ahead the Next 50 Years 

Shun-ichiro Uchimura
Vice President and Executive Of�cer, 
General Manager of New Business 
Development Headquarters
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

Hisashi Maruyama
Executive Of�cer, 
Deputy General Manager of 
CSR Management Sector
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

SPECIAL FEATURE

Masanori
Sukenobu
Hitachi Kasei Polymer 
Co., Ltd.

Zhang Yan
Hitachi Chemical 
(Nantong) Co., Ltd.

Naoki Asano
Hitachi Chemical 
Co., Ltd.
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Morisawa: For Hitachi Chemical to still be a sound company in 
50 years’ time, the most important factor will be its people. For 
example, if personnel who have been heavily involved in R&D 
end up quitting, new business possibilities may fade. In other 
words, the establishment of a fair and impartial human resource 
evaluation system not only has a social aspect in curbing the 
number of employees who leave, it is also a bene�t for Hitachi 
Chemical business itself.

A woman has been appointed as the Outside Director, but 
as going from zero to one marks a radical departure, I believe 
that you will want to continue and intensify your efforts in this 
respect.

Kanai: I believe that the introduction of a standardized human 
resource evaluation system will be a pioneering initiative within 
the chemical industry. However, you have no foreign nationals at 
the Director or Executive Of�cer level. As there is no denying that 
Hitachi Chemical lags behind the industry in this respect, this is 
something that you will de�nitely want to address.

In addition, pro�t is the foundation of all management ac-
tivities. If there is pro�t, you can achieve what you �rst set out 
to achieve. As this is connected to a number of factors, includ-
ing workforce motivation and the sense of having a presence in 
society, and as you will know linked to value, I will certainly be 
hoping to restore pro�t.

Our DNA / In Summary
Revitalizing Hitachi Chemical’s DNA, Moving Ahead 
the Next 50 Years

Uchimura: Based on the view that they are always needed to 
create new businesses, Hitachi Chemical’s technological devel-
opments — we don’t venture to use the words research and de-
velopment — are incorporated in the New Business Development 
Headquarters. Hitachi Chemical has constantly been a pioneer 
of the times, and from that very pioneering spirit may derive 
ideas that form the source of developments.

Moreover, Hitachi Chemical plans to shift its attention to 
the environment, energy and life sciences as the next pillars to 
carry on from the current information and communication-cen-
tered lineup of electronics and automotive �elds. In this way, 
Hitachi Chemical shows �exibility in its ability to select markets 
in which challenge in keeping with the times. This is a feature of 
our company, in other words could be said to be part of our DNA.

Maruyama: I may be repeating something here, but that kind of 
�exibility is being leveraged by the core competencies for the �rst 
time. For Hitachi Chemical to continue developing by combining 
and amalgamating materials technologies and compound tech-
nologies in the same way it has up to now will mean basing its 
business on customer needs that change on a daily basis; in other 
words developing a business that is strongly customer-oriented 
will be an absolute requirement. We hope to be able to continue 
to offer some expert advice.

My word is heng, which is Thai for “good luck“. I chose this 
word in the hope that something good will come from it, so 
that the Hitachi Chemical will remain a group of companies 
able to make wonderful contributions to society through the 
development of superior technologies and products.

“Diversity.” It’s only to be expected that each of us is different. 
But if we combine those diverse capabilities, I believe that 
Hitachi Chemical will be able to overcome any dif�culty that 
comes its way over the next 50 years.

Fuku (“Good fortune“). I wrote a character that implies that, 
as long as everyone’s happy, good fortune will beckon for the 
Company, too. I also chose this character because it’s used to 
write Fukushima, my home prefecture, a place I like and that 
will always be close to my heart.
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Saki Murakami
Hitachi Kasei Shoji 
Co., Ltd.

Thasan Tochan
Hitachi Chemical 
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Kenji Hansaki
Namie Hitachi Chemical 
Co., Ltd.

Communication Art
Original drawing of photo mosaic (P.19)
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Hitachi Chemical Group strives for sus-
tainable growth by developing sus-
tainable business around the world, 
prioritizing the reduction of global 
environmental impact through the 
combination and integration of 
wide-ranging technologies.

Maximize Opportunities
Hitachi Chemical plans to establish an unwavering position in emerg-
ing markets with strong growth potential by developing products 
in line with customer needs with its inherent R&D capabilities, and 
supplying these products from optimally located bases. Leveraging 
the synergies of the Hitachi Chemical Group, we will concentrate 
on expanding business in �elds with growth potential, such as the 
environment & energy.

Eliminate Threats
The Company plans to proactively bring to market unique products 
that offer high functionality, environmental friendliness and excellent 
cost performance, based on sustainable engineering and its mid-
range strategy. We will also work on reinforcing governance from a 
global perspective.

Turn Weaknesses into Strengths
Forging deeper relationships with its customers and suppliers, 
Hitachi Chemical will engage in business activities based on a vari-
ety of international frameworks at the supply chain level. The Com-
pany will also promote life cycle assessment (LCA) and material �ow 
cost accounting (MFCA) in order to reduce environmental impact 
throughout the entire product lifecycle. The Hitachi Chemical Group 
will continue to implement these measures as a globally competitive 
group of companies.

SWOT Matrix

Business 
Reform 

+ 
Business 
Stance

Internal factors

Strengths

VTechnological development 
capabilities backed by Material 
System Solutions (MSS)

VDevelopment of sustainable 
engineering

VMid-range strategy that emphasizes 
cost performance

Weaknesses
VNeed to focus more on value 

chain management, including the 
environment, human rights and 
occupational safety and health

External factors
Opportunities

VMarket expansion in growth �elds 
(environment & energy, etc.)

VMarket expansion in automotive 
and electronic products in emerging 
countries

V Increasing demand for 
environmentally friendly products

Threats
VStronger competition in global 

operations
VGrowing awareness of corporate 

social responsibility (CSR)
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Targets for Fiscal 2013

Hitachi Chemical has made steady progress expanding overseas production bases and putting in place 
an R&D structure for developing new businesses. However, the Company still needs to address some 
issues, including increasing the number of sustainable engineering products on the market and strategi-
cally developing mid-range products in the high-function materials business.

The Hitachi Chemical Group has been building new production bases 
and expanding existing ones mainly in Asia in order to ful�ll robust de-
mand in emerging countries. We have also strategically developed mid-
range products in a bid to increase international competitiveness.

As a technological innovator that is “Working On Wonders,” Hitachi 
Chemical has been advancing an R&D strategy that facilitates the cre-
ation of new businesses in critical �elds. Going beyond measures to 
strengthen its R&D structure, the Company also works on developing 
highly functional products through industry-academic-government col-
laboration with its diverse range of core technologies, such as its accu-
mulated materials technologies.

Business innovation is an essential aspect of sustainable engineering. 
Hitachi Chemical develops sustainable engineering products through 
R&D focused on mitigating environmental impact, including carbon 
management, resource recycling and loss reduction.

Hitachi Chemical promotes Material System Solutions (MSS) to provide 
optimal solutions based on a precise understanding of customer require-
ments for product development and manufacturing processes. We are 
also enhancing our information-sharing systems throughout the value 
chain including suppliers.

Capital expenditure (FY2012)

Japan  ¥23.0billion

Overseas  ¥23.7billion
P.25

P.26

P.27

P.28

Hitachi Chemical Group’s Major Undertakings in Fiscal 2012

Self-evaluation

We aim to strengthen the marketing and sales structure in Southeast Asian regions through our 
overseas group companies in order to steadily expand our mid-range strategy. We will also concen-
trate more on developing new Eco-products and boosting their sales under the sustainable engi-
neering concept.

Business Reform
 +

 Business Stance

Global Business 
Expansion

Strengthening 
Technological 
Development 
Capabilities

Sustainable 
Engineering

Customer 
Satisfaction
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Global Business Expansion

Developments in Fiscal 2012

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Hitachi Chemical plans to capture returns on its investments by rapidly increasing capacity utilization 
rates at newly established and expanded production bases overseas, in order to secure the strong 
overseas demand. Moreover, the Group will strengthen its regional network-based management 
system and implement measures to expand sales by hiring people locally.

Expand Business in Emerging Countries
Hitachi Chemical has been transitioning to a regional net-
work-based management system through aggressive capital 
expenditure in each region in response to robust demand in 
emerging countries. In �scal 2012, the Company increased the 
number of production bases and expanded production capac-
ity against a backdrop of growth in electronics-related markets, 
including tablets and smartphones, as well as environment & 
energy-related markets, such as storage batteries. The overseas 
sales ratio has steadily increased thanks to concerted efforts to 
globalize businesses since �scal 2010. Going forward, we aim 
for further growth overseas while pushing to quickly generate 
a return on these investments.

Strategic Development of Mid-range Products
With prospects for strong demand, mid-range products with 
excellent cost performance are a linchpin of Hitachi Chemical’s 
global ambitions. Hitachi Chemical aims to tap into this robust 
demand in growth regions (China and Asia) by optimizing its 
sales, production and development structures as well as mate-
rial procurement and production processes, and by develop-
ing a low-cost production system that harnesses economies of 
scale. We have already introduced some mid-range products 
to the market, and look forward to contributions from these 
products.

FY  2010 2011 2012
Japan 22.8 22.9 23.0

Overseas 7.6 14.4 23.7

BCapital expenditure

BBusinesses that came online in �scal 2012 (red-letter) and are scheduled to start in �scal 2013 (black-letter) 

India
VEstablished a joint-venture company 

to manufacture friction materials for 
automotive use [December 2012]

VBuilt a production base for powder metal 
products [April 2013]

China
VNewly established a production base for carbon 

anode materials for lithium-ion batteries [April 2012]

VIncrease production capacity of friction materials for 
automotive use [July 2012]

VExpanded copper-clad laminate product lineup 
[July 2012]

VNewly established a slitting operation site for 
photosensitive dry �lms [January 2013]

VNewly established a production and sales base for 
functional resins and chemical materials [March 2013]

VExpanded production capacity for photosensitive 
dry �lms [March 2013]

VNewly established a production base for CMP 
slurry for semiconductors [April 2013]

VNewly establish a production base for automotive 
plastic molded products [January 2014]

VExpand production capacity in powder metal 
products [FY 2013]

VNewly establish a production base for conductive 
�lms for solar cell electrodes [FY 2013]

United States
VIncrease production capacity of 

powder metal products
   [FY 2014]

Mexico
VIncreased production capacity of 

friction materials for automotive use 
[August 2012]

VNewly establish a production base 
for powder metal products 

   [FY 2014]

Thailand
VNewly established a production base for carbon 

brushes for automotive use [April 2012]

VExpanded production capacity in friction 
materials for automotive use [February 2013]

VExpand production capacity in powder metal 
products [July 2013]

High-
end 

Products

Mid-range 
Products

Low-end Products

Provide materials that create 
new value for customers with 
cutting-edge technologies

Improve marketing and cost 
competitiveness

VOptimize sales and production 
bases

VOptimize materials procure-
ment process

VOptimize production process
VLow-cost production with 

capacity bene�ts

(Billions of yen)
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Strengthening Technological 
Development Capabilities

Developments in Fiscal 2012

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Guided by the R&D portfolio strategies outlined in the new medium-term management plan, Hita-
chi Chemical will appropriately allocate resources to key research �elds. We aim to accelerate and 
improve the ef�ciency of R&D under the R&D stage-gate management framework that has already 
been implemented.

Review of Research Laboratory Structure
Hitachi Chemical has positioned its research laboratories not 
as an independent entity, but as a function that supports the 
creation of businesses within the New Business Development 
Headquarters. In April 2013, Hitachi Chemical reorganized the 
structure of its research laboratories, setting up business de-
velopment centers in each key research �eld (information com-
munications, batteries, social infrastructure, future technolo-
gies and core technologies). The development centers of each 
business division are in charge of R&D for existing businesses 
and also the development of new technologies and products 
while collaborating across the Hitachi Group and with research 
institutions such as universities. The newly created R&D Strat-
egy Of�ce under the New Business Development Headquarters 
is responsible for drawing up medium and long-term strategies 
for technologies and products, unearthing new businesses and 
coming up with action plans for them, drafting a global R&D 
strategy, and planning and advancing open innovation.

Our Efforts in the Environment & Energy Field
In �scal 2012, Hitachi Chemical was recognized for its involve-
ment in the development of resins used in Chugoku Marine 
Paints Co., Ltd.’s anti-fouling hull coating, which features lower 
amounts of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and helps con-
serve fuel, with the Minister of Land, Infrastructure, Transport 
and Tourism Prize at the 10th Industry-Academia-Government 
Collaboration Awards. The introduction of a new high-perfor-
mance hydrolyzed polymer, jointly developed by Chugoku Ma-
rine Paints Co., Ltd., the National Maritime Research Institute, 
and Hitachi Chemical, was key to the successful formation of 
an ultra-smooth coating with little frictional resistance soon af-
ter painting. Coatings require at least 30% less paint volume 

compared with conventional paints, and VOCs are reduced by 
40% or more. Fuel savings of 3-5% is also possible, and anti-
fouling performance is improved so the coating is effective for 
60 months or longer. The polymer-containing paint has already 
been applied to more than 100 ships.

Our Efforts in the Life Sciences Field
Hitachi Chemical has received the “nano tech Award“ for the 
second consecutive year, this time in the Life Nanotechnology 
category for its biocompatible sheet fabrication technology.

This technology forms sheets less than 100nm thick 
from substances that are gentle on the human body. We are 
now able to mass produce these sheets with larger surface 
areas, a task that was nearly impossible using convention-
al nano-sheet production methods, allowing us to satisfy 
customer requirements for sheet thickness and shape. We 
have also greatly improved the handling of these sheets dur-
ing application, which was also an issue with conventional 
nano-�lm technology, making it easier to apply and adhere 

to the target. Moreover, we expect 
this technology to be used in a wide 
range of applications, from women’s 
makeup and skincare products to 
bandages, as a practical application 
of functional nano sheets.Biocompatible nano sheets

BExample of nano sheet with �uorescent component

45%

24%19%

12%61%
34%

3%2%

Strengthening of the �eld of 
environment & energy

50%

30%

10%

10%

Information communications

Environment & energy

Life sciences

Core technologies Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2015 target

With ultraviolet lightingWithout ultraviolet lighting

BCorporate R&D staff allocation

Business Reform
 +

 Business Stance
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Promotion of Sustainable Engineering
Sustainable engineering is at the core of sustainable business, 
and represents the culmination of all the technologies of the 
Hitachi Chemical Group, whereas business innovation is the 
key to sustainable engineering. We aim to increase corporate 
value and contribute to society and the world at the same 

Example of Sustainable Engineering Products

The CEL-W series of white epoxy molding compounds 
for LED packages is used as an anti-re�ective material 
in LEDs. The use of LEDs is increasing at a rapid pace 
because they have a service life tens of times longer than 
incandescent lamps, and energy consumption is a frac-
tion that of incandescent lamps. Increasing luminance 
even further remains an outstanding technology issue, 
but the CEL-W series has been praised for its outstand-
ing re�ective characteristics as well as its high heat and 
light resistance (characteristics that deteriorate little even 
under bright light).

Automakers have concentrated on the improvement of in-
ternal combustion engines and the development of elec-
tric vehicles in order to meet environmental regulations 
that tighten every year. Hitachi Chemical has responded 
to these customer needs by providing powder metal prod-
ucts that offer a high degree of shape and material free-
dom in the powder metal production method. Our vari-
able valve timing components (see picture) have been well 
received by customers for their contribution to reducing 
exhaust gas and improving fuel economy and horsepower 
by varying the timing of engine exhaust valves.

VSales targets and results (on the index)

VSales targets and results (on the index)

FY 2011 2012 2013
target

2015
target

Targets 100 278 620 2,200

Results 172 444 – –

Rate of 
achievement 172 160 – –

Self-assess-
ment 4 4 – –

FY 2011 2012 2013
target

2015
target

Targets 100 500 2,500 10,000

Results 335 2,200 – –

Rate of 
achievement 335 440 – –

Self-assess-
ment 4 4 – –

*Results �gures for periods after �scal 2011 are presented with �scal 2011 ob-
jective data as a base of 100. The rate of achievement is calculated using the 
amount of deviation from target data with sales as a key performance indicator.

*Self-assessment is classi�ed into four levels with the rate of achievement used 
as a reference. The rate of achievement is set at two points or more.

*Results �gures for periods after �scal 2011 are presented with �scal 2011 ob-
jective data as a base of 100. The rate of achievement is calculated using the 
amount of deviation from target data with sales as a key performance indicator.

*Self-assessment is classi�ed into four levels with the rate of achievement used 
as a reference. The rate of achievement is set at two points or more.

CEL-W series of white epoxy molding compounds for LED packages

Powder metal products for environmentally friendly mobility and equipment 
that improves fuel ef�ciency

(%)

time by minimizing our impact on the global environment 
through the prioritization of sustainable engineering at the 
R&D and product planning and design stages. We monitor 
our progress at sustainable engineering using a KPI based on 
the sales ratio of Eco-products to total sales. In �scal 2012, 
this sales ratio was 85.4%.

FY 2013 target FY 2015 target

85.5 or more 88.0 or more

 FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012

87.1 85.1 85.4

BRatio of Substainable Engineering Products to Total Sales  
   (ratio of Eco-products)

Promote sustainable 
engineering on a 
global basis

Sustainable Engineering

Developments in Fiscal 2012

Starting in �scal 2012, the sustainable engineering product ratio was expanded 
to re�ect global operations, and now includes all overseas businesses.

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Our targets for �scal 2015, the �nal year of the CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2, are to achieve 
a sustainable engineering product sales ratio of at least 88%. We will promote the development of 
products that take into consideration global environment concerns as a part of efforts to achieve 
these objectives.
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velopment of future applications and uses this information to 
enhance product quality.

Providing Safe Products
In order to minimize the impact of the use and production of 
chemical substances on human health and the environment, 
the Hitachi Chemical Group constantly enhances and reevalu-
ates its chemical substances management system, in addition 
to putting in place a range of safety measures.In �scal 2012, we 
used a chemical substance, product and procurement mate-
rial information database, a part of our Group-wide chemical 
substance management system that was built in �scal 2011, 
to collate information on the amounts of chemical substances 
manufactured, imported and shipped. In addition, we are up-
grading the database structure to handle article products in 
addition to chemical substance products.

Supply Chain Management
The Hitachi Chemical Group Supply-Chain CSR Deployment 
Guidebook is distributed to major suppliers and is also acces-
sible on our website. Hitachi Chemical created this guidebook 
in response to the growing importance of risk management 
throughout the entire value chain alongside global business de-
velopment. The guidebook is discussed in brie�ngs and other 
meetings with suppliers to lend support to the building of their 
own environmental management systems. The results of a CSR 
survey covering 202 suppliers (These suppliers accounted for 
90% of Hitachi Chemical’s purchases) conducted in �scal 2011 
revealed differences in the level of CSR activity and awareness 
among suppliers. We therefore launched an initiative in �scal 
2013 to meet directly with suppliers and discuss in more detail 
our approach to CSR, including such topics as human rights 
and labor conditions.

Customer Satisfaction
The Hitachi Chemical Group deploys the Material System So-
lution (MSS) in its pursuit of customer satisfaction. MSS is a 
unique business model for assisting customers in solving prob-
lems by integrating its wide-ranging technology and expertise, 
including the material, process and evaluation technologies, 
which the Group has cultivated over the years. MMS has made 
substantial contributions to the growth of mainstay products 
made by the Hitachi Chemical Group, including polishing ma-
terials for semiconductor circuit planarization, die bonding ma-
terials, circuit connection �lm for displays and highly functional 
multi-layer materials.

The Company’s Material System Solutions (MSS) have 
provided increased growth to a wide variety of the Group’s 
current mainstay products including polishing slurry for chemi-
cal mechanical planarization (CMP), die bonding materials, ad-
hesive �lms used for circuit connection of liquid crystal displays 
(anisotropic conductive �lms) and high performance multilayer 
materials (copper-clad laminates).

Hitachi Chemical conducts ongoing customer surveys of 
their product satisfaction, and re�ects their opinions in the de-

Partnerships
Providing 
optimal 
solutions

Latent needs

CustomersSuppliers

Hitachi Chemical Group

VSemiconductor and display materials
VPrinted circuit boards and materials
VOrganic and inorganic chemical products
VFunctional �lms
VAutomotive parts
VDiagnostic reagent-related products

VMaterial technologies
VProcess technologies
VTesting technologies

Business Fields

Combination and 
integration of 

core technologies

Collaboration 
between 

business �elds

Core Technologies

Integration 

BMaterial System Solutions

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Hitachi Chemical aims to help its customers solve problems in product development by identifying 
latent needs and strengthening cross-sectional communications. We will also manage risk through-
out the value chain, including suppliers. 

Customer Satisfaction

Developments in Fiscal 2012

Business Reform
 +

 Business Stance

Shares accident data

Management

Instructs relevant
business sections

Review accident data

Headquarters Quality 
Assurance Division

Reaf�rm corrective
action taken

Trend analysis and
companywide purview

Obtains accident data

Production SitesCustomers

Other Production Sites

Remedial measures
(prevent reoccurrence)

Revises related
rulebooks

Applies these steps to 
similar products

Applies to similar 
products

Product QC accident

Demand for
improvement
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Through aggressive measures including 
M&A, Hitachi Chemical Group has un-
dertaken considerable organizational 
reforms to match changes in markets. 
It has also fostered a more communica-
tive culture between management and 
employees, and continues sound cor-
porate management with high trans-
parency.

Organizational 
Reform 

+ 
Corporate 
Stance

Maximize Opportunities
While working to quickly launch overseas production bases currently 
under construction and expanding existing bases, Hitachi Chemical 
aims to expand sales in each region by improving ties between each 
region and transitioning to local management through an overseas 
regional headquarters system. Targeting further growth in the en-
vironment & energy �eld, the Hitachi Chemical Group will undergo 
a major reorganization to create a more dynamic organization that 
facilitates communications among group companies. We will also 
aggressively utilize our intellectual property rights to establish a solid 
footing in markets.

Eliminate Threats
We aim to improve our global reputation by continuing to be in-
cluded in socially responsible investment (SRI) indices that are well 
regarded around the world, such as the Dow Jones Sustainability 
Asia Paci�c Index and the FTSE4Good Index Series. Hitachi Chemical 
endeavors to earn the trust of all its stakeholders by strictly adhering 
to international frameworks for human rights, the environment and 
fair trade.

Turn Weaknesses into Strengths
Hitachi Chemical is putting into place an overseas regional head-
quarters system in order to accelerate decision-making based on 
regional conditions and reinforce governance. Changes are also 
being made to enable faster decision-making in the organization, 
along with measures (ROIC) to reduce fixed costs and strategi-
cally manage investments.

SWOT Matrix

Internal factors

Strengths

VAnnual town meetings are held at all 
business sites to promote discussion 
and unify group management

VFlexible organizational management 
able to quickly adapt to the business 
environment

VAccumulate valuable intellectual 
property

Weaknesses

VNeed to strengthen group 
management due to rapid 
globalization of operations

VNeed more action for low-cost 
structure

External factors

Opportunities

VElevated global awareness of Hitachi 
Chemical in environment & energy 
and life sciences �elds

VHigher social interest in corporate 
ESG efforts (environment, society, 
governance)

Threats
V Intensifying competition between 

nations from globalization
V Increasing demand for environmental 

and occupational  safety and health
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Patent Applications
(FY2012)

Japan      727
Overseas 724

Reduction of CO2 
Emissions (FY2012)

Japan      350
Overseas 122

thousand
tons

thousand
tons

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Hitachi Chemical began to build out a regional headquarters system in Thailand and India, and shifted 
marketing functions for photosensitive dry �lms for printed wiring boards to China from Japan. At the 
same time, we realize we need to strengthen management further in occupational safety and health.

With the aim of transitioning to a regional network-based management 
structure, Hitachi Chemical has been building out an overseas regional 
headquarters system. In addition, structural reforms were undertaken in 
the energy storage devices business, a new area of concentration for the 
Hitachi Chemical Group.

Hitachi Chemical views intellectual property as a critical asset to its busi-
ness strategy. A number of measures were taken in line with its policy of 
obtaining and aggressively deploying effective patents inside and out-
side Japan based on its business strategy. Employees also continued to 
receive training on intellectual property issues.

Hitachi Chemical completely updated its investor relations website in 
order to improve the timeliness and appropriateness of disclosure for 
business strategy and financial data. The Company was included in 
SRI indices again in fiscal 2012 for its highly regarded non-financial 
(CSR) activities.

Harmony with the environment is positioned as the highest priority man-
agement issue. The Hitachi Chemical Group sets speci�c numerical tar-
gets based on environmental action plans, and constantly works to re-
duce its impact on the environment. Our occupational safety and health 
management system is based on the OHSAS 18001 standard.

P.31

P.32

P.33

P.34

Organizational 
Changes in 
Response to
Market Changes

Hitachi Chemical Group’s Major Undertakings in Fiscal 2012

Self-evaluation

Intellectual 
Property 
Strategy

Strategic 
Communications
with Shareholders
and Investors

Environmental 
and Occupational 
Safety and Health 
Management

Hitachi Chemical will focus efforts on providing comprehensive support for business activities and 
CSR in the establishment of the regional headquarters system, while reinforcing its intellectual prop-
erty strategy. We will also redouble efforts to prevent industrial accidents and ensure the timely 
disclosure of �nancial and non-�nancial information through our investor relations program.

Organizational Reform
 + Corporate Stance
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Business 
Management Investment decisions to expand business

Marketing Expand sales to local customers, put in place 
sales system mechanisms

Technological 
Management

Management of technical information and 
collection of royalties

Finance Collection and tighter control of investment 
funding

Governance Rapid response to country-speci�c management risks

Phase 1

Phase 2

Phase 3

Management integration of local sites 
across regions, improvements in governance

Establishment of region-speci�c marketing
functions

Establishment of marketing, development,
and production functions

Region
FY

China

ASEAN,
India
The

Americas

Europe

2013

Ph3

Ph1~Ph2 Ph3

Ph2

Ph2

Ph1

Ph1

2014 2015

Organizational Changes in Response to Market Changes

Developments in Fiscal 2012

BDrafting of Promotion Planning for Regional Headquarters

Promotion of Process Leading to Regional Headquarters
With a view to changing to a regional network system of man-
agement, the Hitachi Chemical Group is promoting the estab-
lishment of a network of overseas regional headquarters. As 
a result of this move, the Group is expecting improvements 
in governance capabilities from the integration of local sites 
across regions and the establishment at each regional head-
quarters of functions ranging from marketing to development 
and production. In �scal 2012, marketing functions of photo-
sensitive dry �lms for printed wiring boards were transferred to 
the management headquarters in China.

Making Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery a Wholly Owned Subsidiary
As part of its measures to strengthen its presence in the bur-
geoning environment and energy �eld, the Company com-
pleted making Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. a wholly 
owned subsidiary.

In addition to enabling a speedier decision-making process, 
the Company consequently expects to expand its industrial 
battery business. This expansion will arise from leveraging the 
synergistic effects of combining Hitachi Chemical’s material 
and evaluation technologies and capabilities in deploying those 
technologies at overseas bases with Shin-Kobe Electric Machin-
ery’s battery and electric equipment technologies.

In �scal 2012, the organizational capabilities of the two 
companies were strengthened by establishing an Energy De-
vice and Systems Business Headquarters and the setting up of a 
Energy Devices and Materials Development Center of the New 
Business Development Headquarters. Hitachi Chemical and 
Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery integrated their sales and mar-
keting functions on April 1, 2013.

Acquisition of Semiconductor Encapsulating Materials Business
Toward gaining the top share of the market for semiconductor 
encapsulating materials, Hitachi Chemical acquired by trans-
fer from Nitto Denko Corporation a semiconductor encapsu-
lating materials business (excluding a business that produces 
encapsulating materials for optical semiconductors) in October 
2012. The companies’ complementary technologies and prod-
uct ranges will enable both to display highly synergistic effects 
between them.

Merger of Sales and Development Divisions
Having decided to enhance and expand its polymer science ma-
terials business and to improve its management ef�ciency, the 
Hitachi Chemical Group transferred and integrated the sales 
and development divisions of Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd. 
and Hitachi Chemical Filtec Inc. to Hitachi Chemical in January 
2013. As a result, the Hitachi Chemical Group has strength-
ened its technical development and marketing capabilities and 
enabled more �exible and speedier responses to customers’ 
new and diverse needs.

BMain Functions of Regional Headquarters

BSynergistic Effects

Materials/Evaluation
Technologies

Fusion Technology
Development

Battery/Electric
Equipment Technologies

Promotion of Superior Businesses

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Hitachi Chemical is endeavoring to put in place a regional network management system in China,  
ASEAN, India. The Company will work to build on what it achieved through Group company reorga-
nization and M&A in �scal 2012.
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Targets for Fiscal 2013

Appropriate Management of Intellectual Property
Regarding intellectual property as an important and indispens-
able asset in the promotion of its business strategy, the Hitachi 
Chemical Group has established three patent policies based on 
the principle of obtaining effective patents and actively utiliz-
ing such patents both in Japan and overseas in line with its 
business strategy. These policies are: to maintain superiority 
in products and technologies; to deal resolutely with infringe-
ments of its patent rights; and to respect the patent rights of 
other companies.

In addition, Hitachi Chemical has set up a full-time depart-
ment, conducts a variety of activities related to intellectual 
property, and continuously mounts educational activities for 
its employees, including those at subsidiaries, with a view to 
increasing their awareness of intellectual property matters.

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012   (FY)

Number of patents held
in Japan
Number of patents held
overseas

Number of patent applications
overseas

Number of patent applications
in Japan

1,461
1,696

1,957
2,205

1,388
1,537

1,734

2,040

596

701 708

556
698

788 841

816

2,371
2,174

727
724

New Business
Development
Headquarters

Tsukuba Research
Laboratory

Intellectual
Property Of�ce

President and Chief
Executive Of�cer

Implementing PPM* in 
each technological and 
product �eld, building 
a global patent 
network

Organizational Reform
 + Corporate Stance

Intellectual Property Strategy

Developments in Fiscal 2012

Strategies by Region
Utilizing the Patent Prosecution Highway (PPH), Hitachi Chemi-
cal works to acquire patent rights quickly in countries where 
the Company manufactures and sells products—or in those 
countries where its competitors or both the Company and its 
competitors manufacture and sell products—with a view to im-
proving support it can provide when starting up a business.

Focusing on the application of utility model rights in China, 
which have been attracting attention in recent years, the Com-
pany is working to acquire effective rights in accordance with 
each country’s laws and regulations.

Maintaining Superiority in Products and Technologies
Implementing Patent Portfolio Management (PPM) in each of 
its technological and product �elds, Hitachi Chemical is build-
ing a global patent network, which is highly effective in sup-
porting the Company’s businesses—depending on whether 
the business is at an early stage, the development stage, or 
maturation stage and on its competitiveness—and maintaining 
the superiority of its products and technologies.

Respecting the Patent Rights of Other Companies
Consolidating a patent search system and nurturing patent 
search experts, Hitachi Chemical rigorously implements search-
es and analyses of other companies’ technologies and patents 
from the R&D phase. While respecting the intellectual property 
of other companies, Hitachi Chemical supports the differentia-
tion of its own technologies.

Dealing Resolutely with Patent Right Infringements
With regard to corporations that infringe its patent rights, Hi-
tachi Chemical takes actively global countermeasures and works 
to maximize business support through intellectual property.

(Recent Examples)

Bringing together research and development teams, Hitachi Chemical concentrates on �ling patent 
applications at the initial stages of development for new technologies and products. As a corner-
stone of patent portfolio management, these activities contribute to the development of a global 
patent network that will help secure competitive advantages for Hitachi Chemical in the future.

BNumber of Patent Applications and Patents Held

BIntellectual Property Management System

November 
2011

With respect to cerium oxide slurry used in chemical-mechanical 
planarization (CMP), the Company filed a lawsuit for patent 
infringement in the United States against the South Korean 
company K.C. Tech Co., Ltd.

January 
2012

With respect to die bonding �lm, the Company �led a lawsuit 
for patent infringement in Taiwan against the South Korean 
company INNOX Corporation.

February 
2013

With respect to anisotropic conductive �lm, the Company �led 
a lawsuit for patent infringement in South Korea against the 
South Korean company H&S HighTech Corp.

*PPM:Patent Portfolio Management
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Visits to Overseas Institutional Investors
Hitachi Chemical is vigorously promoting IR activities overseas 
commensurate with the growing proportion of overseas share-
holders and investors. In �scal 2012, the Company called on 
10 institutional investors in North America, 10 in Asia, and 19 
in Europe. Each meeting was an opportunity for the lively ex-
change of opinions.

Inclusion in SRI Indices
In �scal 2012, the Hitachi Chemical Group’s CSR activities were 
evaluated and included in such global socially responsible in-
vestment indices as the Dow Jones Sustainability Asia Paci�c 
Index, the FTSE4Good Index Series and the MorningStar (MS-
SRI) for the 4th, 10th and 7th consecutive year, respectively.

Targets for Fiscal 2013

FY 2010 2011 2012

Meetings granted 192 228 223

http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/ir/index.html

Europe North America Asia Total

19 10 10 39

Promoting the sharing of 
information and dialog 
with analysts, shareholders 
and investors by vigorous 
communication

Strategic Communication with Shareholders and Investors

Developments in Fiscal 2012
BTrends in number of Individual Investor Interviews

BVisits to Overseas Institutional Investors (Fiscal 2012)

BIR Website Upgrade

Our Basic Approach to Investor Relation
Hitachi Chemical engages in the timely and appropriate dis-
closure of information on its management strategies, �nan-
cial condition and other relevant matters such as CSR to help 
shareholders and investors gain a better understanding of the 
Company and make informed assessments. In addition to com-
plying with all statutory and regulatory requirements as well as 
the rules regarding information disclosure applicable to compa-
nies publicly listed on the securities exchange, Hitachi Chemical 
actively discloses information that it believes may have a mate-
rial impact on investment decisions. This information includes 
details regarding the Company’s management and �nances as 
well as non-�nancial information encompassing the environ-
mental and social aspects of Hitachi Chemical’s business. Based 
on the feedback gained from its dialogs with analysts, share-
holders and investors, Hitachi Chemical shares information on 
such internal issues as improvements in pro�tability and works 
to make improvements on any issues raised.

Two-way Communication with Shareholders, Investors and Analysts
Holding annual general meetings of shareholders and con-
ducting �nancial results brie�ngs for securities analysts and 
institutional investors in conjunction with each announcement 
of the Company’s quarterly �nancial results, Hitachi Chemi-
cal works to promote IR communication. The documents and 
brie�ng summaries used at �nancial results brie�ngs are posted 
afterward in Japanese and English on the IR page of the Com-
pany’s website. The Company responds to individual requests 
for meetings from securities analysts and institutional investors 
and, for the latter, also participates in small meetings.

Hitachi Chemical is increasing the opportunities for two-way communication with all its shareholders, 
investors and analysts. This is re�ected in the opinions they give as required on the continuous improve-
ment in the Company’s corporate activities. By further enhancing its CSR initiatives and the information 
it releases, the Company will set its sights on continued inclusion in the main SRI indices.
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signi�cant deterioration in the CO2 conversion factors of all the 
power generating companies, which had the effect of increas-
ing CO2 emissions by 48,000 tons compared with �scal 2011. 
The Hitachi Chemical Group’s overall amount of CO2 emissions 
was 473,000 tons, 122,000 tons of which were from overseas 
operations. As this marked an improvement of 5% reduction 
per basic unit compared with �scal 2005, the �scal 2012 target 
of a 7% improvement was not achieved.

Promoting Occupational Safety and Health
Management
Hitachi Chemical obtained OHSAS 18001 certi�cation to in-
crease the effectiveness of preventative measures for occupa-
tional disasters. Based on OHSAS 18001, the Company is also 
working to reduce the possibility of occupational accidents and 
management risks by systematically and effectively reducing 
and controlling the risks related to the occupational safety and 
health of the employees and any other persons present at our 
places of business, in addition to continuously improving oc-
cupational safety and health management systems.

Targets for Fiscal 2013

2013plan (FY)2012
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Organizational Reform
 + Corporate Stance

Environmental and Occupational Safety and Health 
Management

Developments in Fiscal 2012

Implementation of continuous 
improvements in environmental 
activities through self-evaluation

BTrends in CO2 Emissions

BGREEN21-2015 Assessment Radar Chart

Promoting Environmental Management
Regarding harmonious co-existence with the environment as a 
key management priority, every �scal year the Hitachi Chemical 
Group formulates an Environmental Action Plan—itself based 
on its Action Guidelines for Environmental Conservation—and 
works to impose a minimal burden on the environment. Steadi-
ly building up a picture of the needs and data related to tak-
ing into account global warming prevention, the cyclical use of 
resources, and the conservation of ecosystems, the Company 
re�ects those needs and data in its monozukuri (in purchas-
ing, production, use, disposal, and distribution). The Company 
also improves environmental awareness among its employees 
and promotes dialog with its stakeholders. In addition, Hitachi 
Chemical engages in self-assessments of its overall environ-
mental activities under GREEN21-2015, an initiative undertaken 
across the entire Hitachi Group. These assessments are helping 
to ensure continuous improvement.

Responses to Climate Change
The Hitachi Chemical Group has in place the Environmental Ac-
tion Plan for the period to �scal 2015. As a target for the reduc-
tion of CO2 emissions in Japan, the Group has identi�ed a �nal 
target for �scal 2015 of 15% compared with levels recorded in 
�scal 1990. The reduction target for �scal 2015 that includes 
overseas operations is 10% compared with the level recorded 
in �scal 2005 for CO2 emissions per ¥1 million of production 
value (basic unit).

In �scal 2012, the amount of CO2 emissions in Japan was 
350,000 tons, a reduction of 26% compared with �scal 1990, 
which cleared the target of 12%. Following the ramping up 
of thermal power generation operations in light of the cessa-
tion of nuclear power generation, however, there has been a 

In due consideration of the effects that the Hitachi Chemical Group’s operations have on the environment, 
the Company will promote activities designed to reduce environmental impact based on the annually 
compiled Environmental Action Plan. On a Group-wide basis, the Company will also implement ongoing 
improvements to its occupational safety and health management systems that conform to OHSAS 18001.

GREEN21-2015 evaluates 53 environmental protection items in 8 categories with a 
weighting factor reflecting relative importance assigned to each item. Ratings are 
assigned to each item, with 5 as the highest rating. The �gure obtained by multiplying 
the rating by the weighting index for that item is the evaluative index (i.e., GP). The total 
GP for each category is 100GP, and the total GP for the eight categories is 800 GP.
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Hitachi Chemical Group fosters 
World Class Professionals (WCPs) 
able to compete on the world stage, 
and focuses on improving the busi-
ness mindset of each employee to 
move one step closer to sustainable 
growth.

Maximize Opportunities
In accordance with the globalization of markets, Hitachi Chemical 
aims to place the right people in the right jobs by fostering WCPs, 
talented human resources �uent in global business practices, 
through the proactive promotion of diversity and global coaching 
activities. We are making concerted efforts to establish English as a 
common internal communication tool and instill KT Method training 
program. 

Eliminate Threats
We are able to cope with local risks, such as human rights violations 
and corruption, by making sure our Code of Conduct is well known 
by each and every Group employee. We also tackle social issues by 
offering opportunities for our employees to voluntarily participate in 
activities for the bene�t of society.

Turn Weaknesses into Strengths
Hitachi Chemical is laying a foundation for Group-wide commu-
nications through global coaching, the use of English on a daily 
basis, and KT Method training programs, while working to step 
up the exchange of human resources among Group companies. 
Through these efforts, we aim to realize our global corporate 
slogan of Working On Wonders.

SWOT Matrix

Human 
Resource 
Reform 
      + 
Individual 
Stance

Internal factors

Strengths
VPromotion of diversity management 

as a business strategy
VFoster World Class Professionals

Weaknesses

V Issues with personnel exchanges 
between Group companies due to 
globalization

VNeed to improve English ability of 
employees in Japan

External factors

Opportunities
VMobility of global human resources
VExpansion of global procurement 

activities at customers (encouraged 
by local production)

Threats

VHow to strengthen response 
to region-speci�c risks due to 
globalization

VHow to respond to a society with 
low birthrates and increasing elderly 
population

* KT Methods train employees to solve problems using a rational decision-making process.
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Hum
an Resource Reform

 + Individual Stance

Targets for Fiscal 2013

We aim to expand our programs to foster WCPs and enhance the development of human resources, such 
as by increasing opportunities for rotations in career advancement. We also aim to improve internal com-
munications and reinforce the organizational power of the Group.

Hitachi Chemical Group’s Major Undertakings in Fiscal 2012

The Company has promoted a variety of measures in an effort to foster global human resources and to 
ensure the assignment and recruitment of personnel on a global basis. On the occasion of its 50th an-
niversary, and with a view to the next �ve decades going forward, Hitachi Chemical has proactively pur-
sued dialog between management and employees, between colleagues, and with stakeholders while 
also engaging in social contribution activities.

In order to foster WCPs, Hitachi Chemical has implemented a new hu-
man resources program called the Global Coaching Program alongside 
ongoing initiatives including the Global Leadership Forum, using English 
on a daily basis and KT Method training programs.

To raise mutual awareness of issues, we promote dialogue between em-
ployees and management at communications workshops, which boast 
a 96% participation rate among Group employees, and Town Meetings 
every year.

We aggressively provide opportunities for women and foreign na-
tionals to advance in the workplace by striving to match the best 
people to positions based on their individual skills and aptitude. We 
also have programs to rehire retirees after their mandatory retire-
ment age and to hire people with disabilities.

In celebration of our 50th anniversary, we made every effort to contrib-
ute to local communities through a variety of activities and volunteer 
work, including a campaign to protect biodiversity, classrooms with sci-
ence experiments for children, sponsorship of sports events for people 
with disabilities and aid to regions affected by natural disasters.

P.37

P.38

P.39

P.40

Education, 
Training and 
Evaluation 
of World-
class Human 
Resources

Self-evaluation

Promoting 
Dialogue

Diversity 
Management

Co-existing 
with Local 
Communities

36ANNUAL REPORT  2013



Fostering World Class Professionals (WCPs)
The Hitachi Chemical Group defines WCPs as employees that 
are able to advance their own knowledge and skills to compete 
on the world stage, by putting their expertise to practice, ob-
jectively assessing the results, and then repeating this process. 
We support the development of WCPs through education and 
training.

Global Coaching Program
The Company has launched the Global Coaching Program for 
the purpose of revving up the engine of new value creation by 
transforming the Hitachi Chemical Group into an organization 
that thrives on dialogue and challenges. Currently, 292 internal 

Measure Details Activities in Fiscal 2012

Global Leadership 
Forum

Interaction with top 
management at overseas 
Group companies

19 top managers, 15 executive 
officers and 10 management 
candidates at overseas Group 
companies

Overseas training 
system

On-the-job training 
at overseas Group 
companies

Total three employees 
dispatched to the U.S. and 
Thailand

Young employees 
dispatched 
overseas for short 
stays

Training in new 
languages and cultures

Total 22 employees dispatched 
to the U.S., Malaysia, India, 
the U.K. and Indonesia

KT Method 
training program*

Train and support 
instructors in the ways of 
KT Method

9 people trained at overseas 
Group companies, training 
starting for all Group 
employees

Build a global 
personnel 
evaluation system

Create evaluation 
points and standards, 
clarify global personnel 
requirements

Plan to operate system on trial 
basis in October 2013

Use English on a 
daily basis

Write materials in English, 
etc.

Use English materials in 
Executive Officers' Meetings

1,752people 44people

Number of participants in global coaching program Number of participants in Global Leadership Forum

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Hitachi Chemical plans to increase the frequency of various programs that support the development of 
WCPs. It will also continue efforts to improve the English skills and KT Method training program so they 
can compete globally.

Education, Training and Evaluation of World-class 
Human Resources

Developments in Fiscal 2012

coaches and 1,460 (total 1,752) stakeholders participate in this 
program. Some of the kickoff meetings were held in Chinese 
and English for overseas Group companies. 

We aim to train 400 more internal coaches in both fiscal 
2013 and fiscal 2014 as a part of our initiative to transform the 
Hitachi Chemical Group.

Global Leadership Forum
Management at Hitachi Chemical has sponsored Global Lead-
ership Forums (GLF) as a venue for interactions with top man-
agement at overseas Group companies. In fiscal 2012, 44 peo-
ple participated in these forums, and discussions covered such 
topics as companywide policies, global management issues, 
human resource management, technological strategy and CSR 
activities.

Introduction of a Global Personnel Evaluation System
In fiscal 2012, we began to build a global personnel evalua-
tion system in order to evaluate personnel uniformly across all 
Group companies, based on Hitachi Global Grading (HGG) and 
Hitachi Chemical Group’s Global Talent Standards (GTS). 

HGG evaluates all positions within the Group for points 
in common and then maps the best people to positions on a 
global basis. GTS collates the competencies required of em-
ployees in the Hitachi Chemical Group, and uses this informa-
tion in personnel evaluations as an original tool for the Hitachi 
Chemical Group. Both HGG and GTS will be deployed on a trial 
basis in October 2013. In addition, we will continue to support 
the conventional career development of ordinary employees, 
mainly through meetings with their superiors.

BProgram to foster WCPs

* KT Methods train employees to solve problems using a rational decision-making process.
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Promotion of Town Meetings
The Hitachi Chemical Group has been holding Town Meetings 
since �scal 2010. Town Meetings are designed to nurture a cor-
porate culture of dialogue, with executive of�cers from Hitachi 
Chemical paying visits to the of�ces of Group companies inside 
and outside Japan to hold brie�ngs with and �eld questions 
from employees. In �scal 2012, Town Meetings were held at 
100 sites inside and outside Japan from April to October, with 
participation open to all employees in Japan and all managers 
at overseas companies. The participation rate was 70% in Ja-
pan and 89% overseas.

Publication of Group Newsletter
With all the feedback received in Town Meetings, the Hitachi 
Chemical Group decided to completely renew its corporate 
newsletter, which had been published solely for the employees 
of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., and redeploy it as a Group-wide 
newsletter called WOW circle in April 2012. WOW circle is avail-

70% 89% 96%

At Town Meetings held in �scal 2012, a total of 508 opinions 
and questions were aired, an increase of 1.6 times over the 
previous fiscal year. Many participants asked for more specific 
information about management policies and plans concerning 
globalization, organizations, new products and technologies, 
human resource development, and the environment. In 
response, we added a special feature section to the Group 
newsletter WOW circle, which has been published since April 
2012, and we launched a web version of the newsletter in April 
2013 to more quickly disseminate information in more detail. 

In January 2013, Hitachi Chemical moved its headquarters 
to GranTokyo South Tower in Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo. The new 
office features a freestyle floor plan absent of fixed seating 
arrangements in order to create a flexible work style and 
promote communications among employees.

Japan Overseas

Town Meeting participation 50th anniversary workshop participation

Hum
an Resource Reform

 + Individual Stance

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Hitachi Chemical aims to foster a culture that facilitates dialogue and risk-taking by continuing to hold 
Town Meetings and taking measures to promote dialogue across the organization, inside and outside 
Japan.

Promoting Dialogue

Developments in Fiscal 2012

able in three languages: Japanese, English and Chinese. We 
also began publishing a web version of the newsletter in April 
2013.

Management Survey Conducted
The Hitachi Chemical Group conducted an attitude survey 
of management at all Group companies around the world in 
2011 and again in 2012. The results of the survey indicated an 
improvement in their understanding of business policies and 
diversity in organizations. On the other hand, it did not show 
much improvement in dialogue and communications across 
business divisions among all managers regardless of their lo-
cation inside or outside Japan, age, or title. We will work to 
improve communications in this regard.

50th Anniversary Workshops Held
On the occasion of Hitachi Chemical’s 50th anniversary, the  
Group held Communication Workshops for all Group employ-
ees in order to promote the full participation of all employees in 
the operations of the Group. These workshops were attended 
by 96% of all employees and provided an opportunity for par-
ticipants to offer their impressions of messages from manage-
ment as well as to share their visions of the future.
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Targets for Fiscal 2013

In line with rapid globalization, the Hitachi Chemical Group will focus on securing and nurturing human 
resources able to work within a global context, encourage diversity in its workforce, and update systems 
that support work-life management. 

Diversity Management

Developments in Fiscal 2012

We surveyed the needs of the 16,000 households in Hitachi City, Ibaraki 
Prefecture, and opened Sakura Café, a community space. Using business 

to solve regional 
issues

Finding
re-employment 
for employees 
reaching mandatory 
retirement age

Our Basic Approach to Diversity Management
For the Hitachi Chemical Group to contribute to society through 
its business activities and grow as a sustainable organization, 
it must innovate and create value that transcends its traditional 
business �elds. We believe diversity in human resources is one 
of the wellsprings of innovation. 

To support the work-life management of employees, Hi-
tachi Chemical has drawn up the Next-generation Care & Sup-
port Action Plan to update related systems, increase awareness 
of the systems, and encourage their use. We will raise aware-
ness of the support systems on the intranet and in guidebooks, 
and re�ect the opinions of employees and labor unions in the 
systems.

Empowering Women in the Workforce
Hitachi Chemical has run a mentoring program since �scal 
2008 to empower women at the workplace. The Company has 
also taken other steps, including dispatching members to exter-
nal groups and participating in different career exchange meet-
ings, which center on marketing positions for women. 

Hitachi Chemical began in earnest to hire women for main 
career track positions in 2005. In �scal 2012, women account-
ed for 7.7% of the candidates for management positions. We 
will continue to offer opportunities and give evaluations on an 
equal basis for men and women, and promote the empower-
ment of women at work. We also aim to increase awareness 
throughout the Hitachi Chemical Group, such as through re-
ports by the Executive Of�cers Meeting.

Hiring of Foreign Nationals
With regard to new college graduates, the Hitachi Chemical 
Group does not base its hiring and compensation decisions on 

nationality. The Company actively participates in job fairs over-
seas and career forums for exchange students inside Japan, 
looking for talented people to hire. While eyeing to improve di-
versity in human resources, Hitachi Chemical seeks mid-career 
hires with highly specialized technological skills and knowledge 
in addition to foreign language skills. We are actively nurturing 
employees within the Hitachi Chemical Group without regard 
to nationality, and offer equal training opportunities and per-
formance evaluations.

Employment of People with Disabilities
The Hitachi Chemical Group provides opportunities for people 
with disabilities to participate in society by expanding the range 
of occupations applicable for employees with disabilities and 
modifying related facilities. 

In �scal 2012, the ratio of employees with disabilities to 
the total workforce was 2.02% at Hitachi Chemical and 2.18% 
when including consolidated subsidiaries in Japan. Both of 
these ratios are above the legally mandated employment quota 
in Japan. We remain committed to helping people with disabili-
ties �nd employment at Group companies, and aim to enhance 
information sharing in this regard.

Re-employment of Retirees
Hitachi Chemical has maintained a re-employment system for 
employees over the age of 60 since 2001. As of April 30, 2013, 
119 employees are working with the Company under this sys-
tem. In addition, Hitachi Chemical has initiatives several mea-
sures including the opening of the Sakura Café. This commu-
nity space is an example of the Company’s efforts to widen the 
areas for the elderly to excel.

June 2013 opening
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Money
contribution

30.3%Enforcement
of the
voluntary
program

35.5%

Opening of facilities

26.9%

111.04
millions of yen

Goods
contribution

2.2%

Participating in the planning
programs of other companies
and organizations

4.2%

Supporting disaster-stricken areas affected
by the Great East Japan Earthquake

0.9%

Hum
an Resource Reform

 + Individual Stance

Targets for Fiscal 2013

Working in unison as a group inside and outside Japan, we will remain actively involved in the Green Cur-
tain Project, science classrooms for children, chemistry experiment classes, and regional contributions with 
a focus on preserving biodiversity.

Co-existing with Local Communities

Developments in Fiscal 2012

Number of participants
in Hitachi Chemical’s social contribution programs Number of employee volunteers

Encouraging activities that help society
The Hitachi Chemical Group believes a company is a member 
of society and has formulated policies on social contributions 
based on this principle. We think preserving the global envi-
ronment and fostering leaders of the next generation are two 
central pillars of this principle, and take a grassroots approach 
to regional contributions. The Company accounts for spending 
on activities that contribute to society, and aims to improve 
these activities further.

Preserving the Global Environment
The Hitachi Chemical Group has continued to promote the 
Green Curtain Project, an initiative that encourages the par-
ticipation of all employees, since �scal 2006. The project aims 
to conserve energy by keeping indoor temperatures from rising 
by growing a wall of curtain-like vines at business sites and 
employees’ homes. In �scal 2012, a total of 6,000 bitter gourd 
seedlings were also donated to elementary schools and other 
buildings in more than 200 locations, and we offered advice on 
how to grow the plants. In addition, the Company expanded its 
regional activities through guest speakers, volunteers to set the 
Green Curtain for homes, and cooking classrooms. 

With the aim of protecting biodiversity, in �scal 2012 Hitachi 
Chemical focused efforts such as nature conservation activities 
at the Higashi Namekawa Seashore Green Park in Hitachi City, 
Ibaraki Prefecture, the restoration of abandoned farmland in 
areas around Kasumigaura Basin, and planting trees and walk-
ing in Malaysia.

Fostering the Human Resources Responsible for the 
Next Generation
The Hitachi Chemical Group engages in activities that are de-
signed to convey the wonders and enjoyment of science and 

chemistry to children. At the same time, the Group works dili-
gently to cultivate a greater sense of curiosity while providing the 
motivation to learn. Working in collaboration with the Chemical 
Society of Japan, we have taken steps to help provide chemistry 
experiment classes for children of all ages from pre-schoolers 
to high school students since �scal 2008. Hitachi Chemical has 
also conducted science experiment classes for pre-schoolers, 
with employees serving as teachers, since �scal 2012. Classes 
were conducted on 31 occasions at 
16 kindergartens with 595 (in total 
1,099) children participating. Text 
books used as educational materi-
als are posted on the Company’s 
website. Group companies are also 
engaging in ongoing activities. For 
example, experiment classes cover-
ing the principles of rocket science 
are held in the U.S.

Support for Culture Arts and Public Welfare
The Hitachi Chemical Group offers academic support to univer-
sities and research institutions, takes in interns from around the 
world, and provides aid to students via a scholarship system for 
universities in the U.K. and China. The Company also donates to 
regions affected by natural disasters inside and outside Japan. 
In �scal 2012, we held a kids’ tournament and helped sponsor a 
triathlon in Miyagi Prefecture 
that had been canceled since 
the Great East Japan Earth-
quake. We also helped out 
with a badminton tournament 
for people with disabilities.

BSpending on social contribution programs 
in �scal 2012

3,417people 1,553people
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Shareholders’ Meeting

Board of Directors  (8 Directors* including 5 Outside Directors)

Executive Of�cers’ Meeting
 (An Advisory Body to the Chief Executive Of�cer)

* 2 of 8 Directors concurrently serve  as Executive Of�cers

Supervision

Execution

Ernst & Young
Shinnihon

L.L.C.

Nominating Committee
(5 Directors including 4 Outside Directors)

Compensation Committee
(3 Directors including 2 Outside Directors)

Audit Committee
 (4 Directors including 3 Outside Directors)

President and Chief Executive Of�cer,
Senior Vice President and Executive Of�cer,
Vice President and Executive Of�cer 
Executive Of�cer

CSR Management Sector Auditing Of�ce

• Decisions on proposals for election 
and dismissal of Directors

• Decisions on compensation of 
Directors and Executive Of�cers

• Audit of Directors’ and Executive 
Officers’ business operations and 
preparation of audit report

• Decisions on candidates for 
Independent Auditors

• Considers issues of importance which may affect Hitachi 
Chemical and the Group

GOVERNANCE

Strengthening Governance
Hitachi Chemical employs a “Company with Committee Sys-
tem” structure that separates executive and supervisory func-
tions. By reinforcing the supervisory functions of the Board of 
Directors, the Company realizes a management structure that 
is highly objective and transparent. In addition, directors and 
auditors from Hitachi Chemical are assigned as necessary to 
Group companies to enhance oversight. 

The Hitachi Chemical Group is also striving to augment 
its compliance structure to ensure its operations conform to the 
law and its Articles of Incorporation. Hitachi Chemical periodi-
cally conducts internal audits of business sites and Group com-
panies. In �scal 2012, audits were carried out at 35 locations. 

Furthermore, to secure the credibility of our �nancial re-

Directors’ Compensation
Each year, the Compensation Committee sets the policies for 
determining compensation paid to Directors and Executive 
Of�cers and monitors various criteria to ensure compensation is 
fair and motivating. This process is underpinned by the follow-
ing two overarching fundamental policies: (1) maintain a com-
pensation policy that links payment �rmly with performance 
while motivating management to enhance corporate value not 
only from a short term, but also a medium to longterm per-
spective, and (2) maintain a compensation policy that raises 
the competitiveness of overall incentive and ensures that the 
Company is capable of attracting large numbers of outstand-
ing personnel. The amount of compensation paid to directors 
in �scal 2012 is presented as follows.

Hitachi Chemical meticulously adheres to fundamental ethical and moral tenets, ful�lls its 
responsibilities of communicating effectively with stakeholders, and engages in transparent 
and sound corporate management. 

porting, the Group documents its performance and objectively 
evaluates the effectiveness of governance in �nancial report-
ing in accordance with the COSO framework from the United 
States and Standards for Management Assessment and Audit 
concerning Internal Control Over Financial Reporting in Japan. 
The Group discloses results within the framework of the Fi-
nancial Instruments and Exchange Law. With respect to Group 
companies, Hitachi Chemical periodically performs operation 
audits while monitoring internal controls, while supporting im-
provements in control environments. 
* COSO Framework: The integrated control framework announced by the Com-
mittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in the 
U.S.; currently, the de facto standard for evaluating internal controls. 

BGovernance structure (As of June 2013)

Classification
Heading

Directors
(excluding outside 

directors)

Executive
Officers

Outside 
Directors

Amount of Compensation
 (millions of Yen) 100 459 55

Amount of 
Compensation

by category
 (millions of Yen)

Monthly Basic 
Compensation 90 393 48

Performance-based 
Compensation / Terminal 

Allowance
10 66 7

Reward for Retirement − − −

Number of Executive Of�cer 4 13 5

Notes:
1.Amounts of compensation paid to directors are rounded to the nearest million yen.
2.Compensation paid to directors, who hold the concurrent position of executive of�cer, is clas-

si�ed into the portion payable to the individual in his or her capacity as a director and to the 
individual in his or her capacity as an executive of�cer. Amounts are presented as sum totals.

3.Of the Company’s four directors (excluding outside directors) one director holds the concurrent 
position of executive of�cer.

BThe Amount of Compensation Paid to Directors in �scal 2012
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CSR Promotion System 
Hitachi Chemical has established the CSR Management Sector 
to advance its CSR initiatives from a Company-wide perspec-
tive. The CSR Management Sector encompasses sections that 
oversee such areas as the Environment Safety Promotion Dept., 
CSR Quality Assurance Dept., Risk Management, Corporate 
Export Regulation & Control Dept., Public and Investor Rela-
tions, Brand & Advertising, Social Contribution, Financing and 
Human Resources, and promotes cross-sectional CSR initiatives 
in accordance with the CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2.

Risk Management
In preparation for a risk event, the Company has created the 
Hitachi Chemical Risk Management Implementation Guidelines, 
which provides a list applicable risks, requires all managers and 
employees to prevent risks from occurring, outlines the mem-
bers and priorities of Emergency Response Headquarters set 
up when needed, and communications standards during risk 
events. With assistance from relevant departments, the CSR 
Management Sector conducts audits of each division within 
Hitachi Chemical and at Group companies in order to ascertain 
the status of their risk management systems. Each division and 
Group company is also required to perform self-audits. 

Business Continuity Management
The Hitachi Chemical Group works to minimize the risk of any 
disruption to its ongoing business as a part of efforts to garner 
the trust of its customers and society, and prepares for the un-
likely event of a risk materializing. 

As a part of these endeavors, the Group has put in place 
a business continuity plan (BCP) to address such contingencies 
as a large-scale earthquake or major pandemic, such as a new 
in�uenza global pandemic. In �scal 2012, we worked to in-
crease our state of readiness. 

At the same time, we conduct simulated training exer-
cises based on BCP scenarios in order to heighten the level of 
our preparedness in a crisis. In �scal 2012, Hitachi Chemical did 
two training exercises, one each in November and March. 
Other Group companies, including Shin-Kobe Electric Machin-
ery Co., Ltd. and Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd., have start-
ed to conduct their own simulated training exercises.
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VCorporate Export Regulation & Control Dept.

VCSR Quality Assurance Dept.

VEnvironment Safety Promotion Dept.

VCorporate Communication Center

VFinance Center

VGlobal Human Resources and Administration Center

Public and Investor Relations / Brand & Advertising / 
Sustainability (Compliance, Risk Management,
Information Security, Social Contribution) / Legal Affairs

Group Environment and CSR Committee

CSR
Management
Sector

Business
departments, 
Sites,
Group
companies

President and CEO

Board of Directors

President and CEO

Business departments

Group companies

CSR Management Sector

Board of Auditors

Corporate Export Regulation & Control Dept.

CSR Quality Assurance Dept.

Environment Safety Promotion Dept.

Corporate Communication Center

Simulated training exercise

BRisk Management System

BCSR Promotion System
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Our Approach to Compliance
The Hitachi Chemical Group de�nes compliance as much more 
than merely observing statutory and regulatory requirements. 
Compliance also entails adhering to and improving our ability 
to comply with voluntary industry standards, corporate ethics, 
social norms and each individual employee’s sense of appropri-
ate behavior. In this regard, the Group positions compliance at 
the heart of its CSR activities. 

Through an e-learning program and periodic roundtable 
discussions, steps are taken to ensure that all employees in 
Group companies around the world are fully aware of the 
Hitachi Chemical Group Code of Conduct and the consequenc-
es of any breach of the Code. In �scal 2012, Hitachi Chemical 
completely revised the former CSR Guidebook in the Hitachi 
Chemical Group Codes 
of Conduct Handbook, 
translated it into English 
and Chinese (both sim-
pli�ed and traditional 
Chinese), and distributed 
copies to all employees.

Strict Adherence to Antimonopoly Act
At Hitachi Chemical, If there is even a hint of any potential 
breach of the Antimonopoly Act, employees in sales and mar-
keting, business or technology-related divisions are obliged to 
record the details in the Compliance Information Record Note-
book, and report the matter to their supervisors and to relevant 
departments. All records are subject to biannual audits con-
ducted by the CSR Management Sector. In �scal 2012, inter-
views were done with all concerned employees to ascertain the 
facts pertaining to all items recorded in the Notebook, con�rm-
ing that no issues had occurred. 

In addition, a legal counselor was invited 
to conduct Antimonopoly Act workshop for 
employees responsible for sales, marketing 
and business planning. A total of 309 employ-
ees participated in the workshop.

Personal Information Protection and 
Information Security

The Hitachi Chemical Group has taken an integrated approach 
to managing information security and protecting personal in-
formation, amending company rules of  personal information 
protection and information security. 

The Information Security Committee, chaired by the 
Chief Information Security Of�cer (CISO), is an organization 
directly under the control of the President. It continuously im-
proves information security by performing risk management 
and developing information security policies. 

Compliance Training and Audits
At the Hitachi Chemical Group, all new and mid-career recruits 
undergo training on CSR and human rights. In �scal 2012, the 
CSR Management Sector oversaw training in Japan and over-
seas, as shown in the table below. Audits were also undertaken 
to ascertain conditions in management systems and training 
programs.

* Shows the cumulative total number of people. Figures in parentheses indicate
   number of training sessions. 

President and CEO

VChairperson
   Chief Information Security Of�cer (CISO)
VCommissioners 
   Information Security Education Chief
   Information Security Chief Auditor
   Information Security Directive Auditor
   Commissioners nominated by CISO

The Committee performs �ve following 
activities about personal information 
protection and information security.

- Risk management
- Deployment of policy
- Implementation of measures
- Planning and promotion of education
- Conduct audits of the Group

Information Security Of�cer

Information Security Committee

Group
Companies

Head Of�ce:
CSR Management Sector

Sites

Information
Asset Managers

Managerial Agency

Persons responsible
for information security
Information Security Auditors
Information System Owners
Physical Security Manager 
Contact for External Affairs
Information Security Promotion Division

The Hitachi Chemical Group Codes of Conduct Handbook 
in Japanese, English and Chinese (simplified and traditional 
Chinese)

Compliance Information Record Notebook

Compliance training at the Tsukuba Research Laboratory
of the New Business Development Headquarters

BInformation Security Management System

BRecord of Compliance Training (FY2012)
Objective Person

Content

New employees 
(including new 

mid-career 
employees)

General 
employees

Section 
manager 

and
higher

Total

Overall compliance 79 (7) 363  (16) 991   (14) 1,433  (37)

Harassment - 32   (1) - 32   (1)

Antimonopoly Act - - 309   (1) 309   (1)

Total 79  (7) 395  (17) 1,300   (15) 1,774  (39)

GOVERNANCE
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EDirectors and Executive Of�cers  As of the end of June 2013

Takashi Kawamura

Keiichi Takeda Kazuyuki Tanaka

Chieko MatsudaYoshio Osawa Takemoto Ohto

Nobuo Mochida Yoshihiro Nomura

Directors

Takashi Kawamura
Chairman of the Board
Outside director 
(Chairman of the Board,Hitachi, Ltd. )

Yoshio Osawa
Outside Director
(Chairman, Konomi, Inc.)

Takemoto Ohto
Outside Director
(Counselor, Nichirei Corp.)

Chieko Matsuda
Outside Director
(Professor of Management, Graduate 
School of Social Science, Tokyo Metro-
politan University)

(Professor, Faculty of Urban Liberal 
Arts,School of Business Administration, 
Tokyo Metropolitan University)

Nobuo Mochida
Outside Director
(Representative Executive 
Of�cer,Executive Vice President and 
Executive Of�cer, Hitachi, Ltd.)
(Director, Hitachi Metals, Ltd.)

Keiichi Takeda
Director

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Director
(President and Chief Executive Of�cer)

Yoshihiro Nomura
Director
(Senior Vice President and Executive 
Of�cer)

Committee Members

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Takashi Kawamura
Committee Chairman

Yoshio Osawa
Committee Member

Takemoto Ohto
Committee Member

Nobuo Mochida
Committee Member

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Committee Member

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Keiichi Takeda
Committee Chairman

Yoshio Osawa
Committee Member

Takemoto Ohto
Committee Member

Chieko Matsuda
Committee Member

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Committee Chairman

Takashi Kawamura
Committee Member

Nobuo Mochida
Committee Member

Executive Of�cers

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Representative Executive Of�cer
President and Chief Executive Of�cer

Kazuyoshi Tsunoda
Representative Executive Of�cer
Senior Vice President and
Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of technology innovation 
 management, corporate export 
regulation & control and structural 
reforms)

(Production, purchasing and produc-
tion control)

Yoshihiro Nomura
Senior Vice President and Executive 
Of�cer
(Oversight of automotive parts)

Shigeru Ito
Vice President and Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of energy devices & system 
business)

Shun-ichiro Uchimura
Vice President and Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of R&D, new business 
development, intellectual property 
and diagnostic reagents)

Akira Kaneko
Executive Of�cer
(Technology innovation management)

Masayuki Kan
Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of CSR, human resources 
and quality assurance)

(Corporate export regulation & control) 

Satoshi Takahashi
Executive Of�cer
(Automotive parts)

Misao Nakagawa
Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of functional materials)

Hajime Nakayama
Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of printed wiring boards)

Hisashi Maruyama
Executive Of�cer
(Finance, corporate communications, 
environment & safety management 
and internal controls)

Toshihiko Miyauchi
Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of management strategies)

Masami Yamamori
Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of China business)

Itsuo Watanabe
Executive Of�cer
(Oversight of marketing & sales)
(Functional materials)
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       Millions of yen
        (except per share data)

Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

(except per share data)
(Note 1) 

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2013

For the year:

Net sales ¥ 464,655 ¥ 473,069 ¥ 497,452 ¥ 455,287 ¥ 488,638 ¥ 629,929 $4,943,138

Operating income 23,559 24,495 43,471 38,341 19,938 60,493 250,628

Net income 18,818 16,427 18,943 23,509 2,740 31,438 200,191

Cash dividends 7,497 7,497 7,497 6,664 6,665 6,636 79,755

Capital expenditures 46,698 37,347 30,432 20,984 35,972 37,383 496,787

Depreciation and amortization 25,255 28,240 28,985 31,666 34,560 32,866 268,670

Research and development expenses 25,534 25,680 26,382 25,402 27,617 28,166 271,638

At year-end:

Total assets ¥ 477,880 ¥ 440,981 ¥ 432,184 ¥ 426,586 ¥ 391,350 ¥ 458,741 $5,083,830

Total liabilities 164,476 153,742 141,873 143,984 127,762 183,771 1,749,745

Interest-bearing liabilities (Note 2) 51,077 40,856 27,151 24,557 30,806 37,210 0

Total net assets

 (Stockholders’ equity) 
 313,404  287,239  290,311 282,602 263,588 274,970 3,334,085

Per share data:

Net income (basic) ¥   90.36 ¥     78.88 ¥     90.96 ¥   112.88 ¥     13.15 ¥   151.60 $        0.96

Net income (diluted) — — — — 13.15 151.57 —

Cash dividends 38.00 36.00 36.00 32.00 32.00 32.00 0.40

Net assets 1,474.11 1,359.33 1,320.30 1,289.11 1,203.92 1,251.66 15.68

Value indicators:

Operating margin (%) 5.1 5.2 8.7 8.4 4.1 9.6

Return on sales (%) 4.0 3.5 3.8 5.2 0.6 5.0

Return on equity (ROE) (%) 6.4 5.9 7.0 9.1 1.1 12.5

Return on assets (ROA) (%) 4.1 3.8 4.4 5.7 0.6 6.8

Net worth ratio

 (Stockholders’ equity ratio) (%)
64.2 64.2 63.6 62.9 64.1 56.6

Debt/Equity ratio (DER) (times) 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Inventory turnover (times) 10.4 11.7 13.2 12.7 12.4 13.7

Number of employees 17,732 16,713 15,930 15,267 15,289 15,303

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Notes: 1.  U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥94=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on 
the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 29, 2013.

 2.  Interest-bearing liabilities include trade notes discounted.

SIX-YEAR SUMMARY
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCES

For the Year Ended March 31, 2012

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

An Overview of Economic Trends and Results
Looking back at the world economy in fiscal 2012, the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2013, the U.S. economy showed gradual improvement in terms 
of the housing market and employment, while the business slump 
continued in Europe due to the sovereign debt crisis. Turning to devel-
oping nations such as China and India, growth was impeded by a 
slowdown in consumption.

Meanwhile, the slowing of the world economy and the high yen 
meant that the Japanese economy’s recessionary phase continued from 
the first quarter through to the third quarter of fiscal 2012. However, 
rising prices and currency appreciation due to the sharp correction of the 
yen at the beginning of 2013 gave rise to signs of recovery in capital 
investment and consumer spending.

Given this management environment, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. 
(“the Company”) endeavored to implement a raft of measures to bring 
about a rapid improvement in results and to expand business operations. 
These measures included: the strengthening of infrastructure in promising 
business areas; expanding existing business; restructuring group business 
for synergistic effects; expanding overseas operations; and making further 
cost reductions. One example was the transfer of the battery-related 
research and development operations and the sales, business planning 
and non-battery –related research and development operations of Shin-
Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. to the Company on October 1, 2012 
and April 1, 2013, respectively, in a bid to enhance synergistic effects 
through business integration. Hitachi Chemical also took over Nitto Denko 
Corporation’s semiconductor epoxy molding compounds business on 
October 1, 2012, further strengthening the foundation of the business. 
Serving as a base for the slit processing of photosensitive dry films for 
printed wiring boards, Hitachi Chemical (Chongqing) Co., Ltd. was estab-
lished in Chongqing, China, to meet the demands of those customers that 
have bases in China’s inland regions. The Company also engaged in the 
construction of a global product supply system by increasing production 
capacity of friction materials in Thailand, and powder metal products in 
China and North America.

Hitachi Chemical thus made concerted efforts to secure sufficient 
sales and profits. Regrettably, the abovementioned measures proved insuf-
ficient to compensate for falling demand in the LCD and automobile 
markets, a situation exacerbated by stagnation in the personal computer 
(PC) market. As a result, slight year-on-year decreases were experienced in 
net sales and operating income in the consolidated business results for the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013. However, as compensation income of 
¥4,890 million—associated with the Company’s loss of income over the 
period March 11 to August 31, 2011, following the accident at the 
Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station—was received from The Tokyo 
Electric Power Company, Incorporated and recorded as extraordinary 
profit, consolidated net income showed an increase from the previous 
fiscal year.

Net Sales
For the fiscal year under review, Hitachi Chemical recorded consolidated 
net sales of ¥464,655 million. This was ¥8,414 million, or 1.8%, lower 
than the previous fiscal year and reflected such factors as the falling 
demand for automobiles, sluggish conditions in the markets for semicon-
ductors and LCDs as well as a prolonged appreciation in the value of the 
yen.

Turning to results by reportable business segment, sales of Functional 
Materials edged up by ¥302 million, or 0.1%, year on year to ¥245,157 

million. In the case of electronics materials, sales increased of the epoxy 
molding compounds used in the back-end processes of semiconductor 
manufacturing, benefiting from the transfer of Nitto Denko Corporation’s 
molding compounds business in October 2012. Sales of die bonding 
materials for semiconductors also increased compared with the previous 
fiscal year due to their increased adoption in smartphones and tablet PCs. 
An increase in sales of products suitable for the finer technology nodes of 
semiconductor design rules resulted in increased sales of the Company’s 
slurry for chemical mechanical planarization. Sales of varnishes showed a 
year-on-year increase due to solid overseas demand for home appliances, 
one of their primary applications.

In the field of inorganic materials, there was a significant increase in 
sales of carbon products. Having been forced to cease production in the 
aftermath of the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station accident in 
2011, progress has been made with the recovery plan involving the 
transfer of carbon brush production to new sites. Sales of carbon anode 
materials for lithium ion batteries, however, experienced a decrease that 
mirrored that of eco-friendly automobile sales, and lower demand for 
products used in semiconductor manufacturing equipment resulted in 
decreased sales of ceramics.

In polymer science materials, sales of anisotropic conductive films for 
displays increased in line with increasing sales of smartphones and tablet 
PCs. Sales of adhesives and adhesive films remained on par with the 
previous fiscal year; adhesives benefited from an increase in sales for 
building materials that offset a decrease in their use for automobiles, while 
adhesive film sales reflected the growing demand for their use protecting 
the surfaces of LCD optical sheets, despite the sluggish semiconductor 
market. Lower demand for automobiles prompted a decrease in synthetic 
resins for paints, and a decline in public sector sales resulted in fewer sales 
of contactless IC cards and tags.

The sales performance of printed wiring board materials reflected 
market trends. Photosensitive dry film sales were buoyed by increasing 
sales for smartphones and tablet PCs, while copper-clad laminates suffered 
a decrease in accordance with a drop in demand for PCs.

In the Advanced Components and Systems segment, sales totaled 
¥219,498 million. This was ¥8,716 million, or 3.8%, lower than the 
previous fiscal year. Also thanks to the recovery plan that successfully 
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transferred production to new sites following the forced cessation of 
operations in Fukushima, sales of friction materials increased year on year. 
Sales of plastic molded products and powder metal products remained on 
par with fiscal 2011. Despite lower export demand, the former benefited 
from increased installation in the intelligent power modules fitted to 
eco-friendly automobiles, while sales of the latter were themselves 
affected by a drop in Japanese automobile sales in China. In North 
America, there was an increase in sales of parts for variable timing mecha-
nisms. The picture in energy storage devices and systems was character-
ized by sales decreases: in vehicle batteries due to the decrease in sales of 
new automobiles; in industrial batteries and systems due to reduced sales 
of power supply devices for telecommunications providers; and in capaci-
tors due to the decline in investment in photovoltaic power generation 
systems in Europe. In electronic components, sales of printed wiring 
boards decreased due to a decline in demand for their use in semicon-
ductor testers. Reported under the Others sub-segment, sales of diagnos-
tics/instruments increased due to an improvement in sales of allergy 
diagnostic kits.

Overseas sales amounted to ¥216,919 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of ¥16,205 million, or 8.1%. Sales in Asia increased, 
while those in Other Areas edged down. Overseas sales accounted for 
46.7% of total net sales. This was a 4.3 percentage point increase 
compared with the previous fiscal year.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative 
Expenses
Cost of sales decreased ¥12,771 million, or 3.5%, compared with the 
previous fiscal year to ¥356,212 million, largely reflecting the downturn in 
direct costs and the drop in raw material expenses, which continued to 
hover at a high level during the previous fiscal year. Despite the efforts 
made to reduce costs, the cost of sales ratio to total net sales decreased 
1.3 percentage points from 78.0% in fiscal 2011 to 76.7%.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses totaled ¥84,884 
million, ¥5,293 million, or 6.7%, higher than the previous fiscal year. 
SG&A expenses as a ratio to total net sales rose 1.5 percentage points 
year on year to 18.3%.

Operating Income
Taking into account the aforementioned factors, operating income 
decreased ¥936 million, or 3.8%, compared with the previous fiscal year 
to ¥23,559. This also largely reflected the falling demand in the LCD and 
automobile markets as well as the stagnation in the PC market. In similar 
fashion, the operating income margin edged down 0.1 of a percentage 
point from 5.2% in fiscal 2011 to 5.1%.

In the Functional Materials segment, operating income increased 
¥1,219 million, or 6.1%, year on year to ¥21,358 million. The operating 
income margin in this segment increased 0.5 percentage points to 8.7%. 
In the Advanced Components and Systems segment, operating income 
decreased ¥2,156 million, or 49.3%, to ¥2,218 million. The operating 
income margin in this segment was 1.0%, down 0.9 percentage points.

 
Other Income (Expenses)
In the fiscal year under review, net other income amounted to ¥7,467 
million, an increase of ¥1,890 million compared with net other income of 
¥5,577 million in fiscal 2011.

Boosting other income even further, the Company received compen-
sation from The Tokyo Electric Power Company, Incorporated in respect of 
the Company’s loss of income over the period March 11 to August 31, 
2011, following the accident at the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power 
Station.

Net Income
Mirroring the downturn in revenues and earnings, income taxes decreased 
¥190 million, or 1.6%, compared with the previous fiscal year to ¥11,579 
million. Minority interests also contracted ¥1,247 million year on year to 
¥629 million.

Accounting for all of the aforementioned factors, net income for the 
fiscal year under review amounted to ¥18,818 million, up ¥2,391 million, 
or14.6%, compared with the previous fiscal year. As a ratio of net sales, 
this represented an increase of 0.5 of a percentage point to 4.0%. Return 
on equity (ROE) increased 0.5 of a percentage point to 6.4% and return 
on assets (ROA) improved 0.3 of a percentage point to 4.1%. Net income 
per share (basic) increased from ¥78.88 in the previous fiscal year to 
¥90.36 in the fiscal year under review.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2013 stood at ¥73,978. This 
was ¥2,340 million lower than the end of the previous fiscal year.

Net cash provided by operating activities increased ¥5,859 million 
year on year to ¥47,931 million. This increase was mainly attributable to 
such factors as an increase in income before income taxes and minority 
interests.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥53,182 million, 
down ¥14,020 million year on year. This largely reflected reduced 
purchase of investments in subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of 
consolidation.

Net cash provided used in financing activities was ¥2,867 million in 
fiscal 2012, compared with net cash provided by financing activities of 
¥4,611 million in the previous fiscal year. The main contributory factor 
was the absence of the proceeds from the issuance of bonds payable 
recorded in the previous fiscal year.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets
Assets
Total assets stood at ¥477,880 million as of March 31, 2013, an increase 
of ¥36,899 million compared with the previous fiscal year-end. Total 
fixed assets climbed ¥33,657 million largely reflecting increase in total 
net property, plant and equipment.

Liabilities
Total liabilities amounted to ¥164,476 million, up ¥10.734 million 
compared with the end of the previous fiscal year. This was mainly due to 
the increase in long-term debt as well as non-current liabilities, which 
climbed ¥6,558 million.

Net Assets
Total net assets came to ¥313,404 million, up ¥26,165 million year on 
year. This largely reflected increases in retained earnings, foreign currency 
translation adjustments, and valuation difference for available-for-sale 
securities.

Capital Expenditure, Research and Development 
Expenses
In addition to operating activities, capital expenditure totaled ¥46,698 
million, an increase of ¥9,351 million compared with the previous fiscal 
year. This largely reflected the Company’s aggressive approach toward 
overseas investment in order to capture robust overseas demand mainly 
in developing countries. Overseas capital expenditures in fiscal 2012 
amounted to 50.8% of the Company’s total capital expenditures. This 
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was a significant increase from the 38.8% in the previous fiscal year.
R&D expenses in the fiscal year under review were ¥25,534 million, 

a decrease of ¥146 million, or 0.6%, compared with the previous fiscal 
year. This represented 5.5% of total net sales, up 0.1 of a percentage 
point year on year.

BASIC POLICY ON APPROPRIATION OF EARNINGS
DIVIDENDS FOR CURRENT FISCAL YEAR
The Company considers its operating environment, performance, future 
business prospects, and the payout ratio in allocating earnings to 
dividends and internal capital reserves. The Company utilizes internal 
capital reserves to effectively build on its robust and resilient financial 
structures, while investing in the R&D of promising, innovative, 
high-value-added products and adding vitality to its existing businesses.

With regard to the cash dividends for the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2013, Hitachi Chemical paid a period-end cash dividend of ¥18 per 
share. Coupled with the interim cash dividend of ¥20 per share, which 
included a commemorative dividend of ¥2 per share, this resulted in an 
annual cash dividend to ¥38 per share. For fiscal 2013, the fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2014, Hitachi Chemical plans to pay an annual cash 
dividend of ¥36 per share, comprising an interim cash dividend and a 
period-end cash dividend each of ¥18 per share.

OUTLOOK AND FORECASTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING
MARCH 31, 2014
Although concerns about prolonged stagnation in Europe still exist, the 
world economy as a whole is expected to remain stable with continuous 

growth expected in the U.S. economy following robust employment 
expansion and improvement in the housing market. There is also the 
prospect of recovery in the Chinese economy as a result of monetary 
easing policies. Recovery in the Japanese economy will continue as the 
ramping up of exports in response to the world economic recovery and 
the weak yen combine with expected expansion of public investment 
through government economic measures.

Under the medium-term management plan initiated from the start 
of fiscal 2013, the Hitachi Chemical Group will achieve an early improve-
ment in business results and construct a strong management base that 
can accomplish sustainable growth.

For its consolidated financial forecast for the fiscal year ending March 
31, 2014, the Company is projecting net sales of ¥500,000 million, a 
year-on-year increase of 7.6%. From a profit perspective, operating 
income is forecast to rise 31.6% to ¥31,000 million with net income 
edging up 1.0% compared with the fiscal year under review to ¥19,000 
million.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCES

BUSINESS AND OTHER RISKS

Hitachi Chemical operates globally in a diverse range of fields, using 
sophisticated, specialized technologies. For this reason, a variety of factors 
may materially impact Group operations. These major business and other 
risks are described below. Statements concerning the future represent the 
judgment of Hitachi Chemical as of March 31, 2013.

(1) Exchange Rate Fluctuations
Hitachi Chemical holds assets and liabilities from overseas operations that 
are affected by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Due to product 
exports and raw material imports usually denominated in U.S. dollars, and 
at times in other local currencies, exchange rate fluctuations may exert a 
material impact on the performance of the Group. The appreciation of 
the yen against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may exert a material 
impact on earnings by weakening the competitiveness of products 
exported to overseas markets. The Group pursues measures to attenuate 
the risk from exchange rate fluctuations, but cannot guarantee that 
exchange rate fluctuations will not affect performance.

(2) Major Raw Material Price Fluctuations
Many of Hitachi Chemical’s products use petrochemical products as raw 
materials. The purchase prices of petrochemical products are susceptible 
to fluctuations in crude oil prices. In addition, fluctuations in the markets 
for other raw materials and export regulations in producing countries may 
increase procurement costs or make it difficult to procure the necessary 
quantities. These factors may exert a material impact on Group perfor-
mance.

(3) Acquisitions, Joint Ventures, and Strategic Alliances
Hitachi Chemical may acquire outside companies, establish joint ventures, 
and implement strategic alliances in order to develop new technologies 
and products, and raise competitiveness. These complex initiatives involve 
integration of businesses, technologies, products, and personnel that 
requires time and expense. Failure to implement these initiatives as 
planned may exert a material impact on Group operations. The success of 
these business alliances is determined in part by factors beyond the 
Group’s control including alliance partner decisions and capabilities, and 
market trends. Implementation of these initiatives may cause the Group 
to incur acquisition-related expenses including expenses for integration 
and restructuring of acquired businesses. In addition, the Group cannot 
guarantee that it will succeed in integrating acquired businesses or that its 
initiatives will achieve all or part of initial objectives.

(4) Potential Risks in Overseas Activities
Hitachi Chemical produces and sells products in Japan, countries in Asia, 
the United States, and in other regions. Exposure to political and social 
risks in these overseas markets may exert a material impact on the finan-
cial position and performance of the Group.

(5) Public Regulations
Hitachi Chemical’s business activities are subject to various regulations in 
the countries in which it operates. The regulations include legal obliga-
tions related to foreign investment, trade, competition, intellectual 
properties, taxes, exchange rates, the environment, and recycling. Signifi-
cant changes to these regulations could restrict operations, increase costs, 
and exert a material impact on Group performance.

(6) Financial Risk
Hitachi Chemical holds equities and other marketable securities. A 
decrease in the value of these marketable securities may exert a material 
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group. In 
addition, long-term procurement of funds from capital markets exposes 
the Group to risk associated with interest rate fluctuations and credit.

(7) Retirement Bene�t Obligations
Hitachi Chemical bears considerable retirement benefit expense obliga-
tions that are computed using actuarial calculations. These appraisals 
involve important assumptions about conditions for estimating the fair 
value of pension assets including mortality rates, decrement rates, retire-
ment rates, salary changes, discount rates, and expected rates of return 
on pension assets. In making these assumptions, the Group must take 
into account numerous factors including personnel conditions, current 
market conditions, and future interest rate trends.

Although the Group makes reasonable assumptions about conditions 
based on key factors, it cannot guarantee that projections will agree with 
actual results. Lower discount rates lead to an increase in actuarial retire-
ment benefit obligations. An increase or decrease in retirement benefit 
obligations may influence the actuarial difference amortized over the 
period of employment. Accordingly, changes in conditions may exert a 
material impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

(8) Relationship with the Parent Company
As of March 31, 2013, Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company of Hitachi 
Chemical Co., Ltd., holds 51.2 percent of the Company’s total number of 
shares issued and 51.4 percent of the total number of shares with voting 
rights (exclusive of indirect shareholdings). Hitachi, Ltd. oversees numerous 
associated companies, and engages in a wide variety of operations 
covering the manufacture, sale, and service of products in five groups: 
Information & Telecommunication Systems, Infrastructure Systems, Power 
Systems, Construction Machinery and High Functional Materials & 
Components. Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. is part of the Hitachi Group’s 
High Functional Materials & Components, and two of its eight Directors 
serve concurrently as Director or Executive Officer of Hitachi, Ltd. (as of 
June 19, 2013). The close relations between Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. 
and its parent company in areas including technical and personnel cooper-
ation and product supply may lead to situations in which Hitachi Group 
developments exert a material impact on the management strategy and 
other policies of Hitachi Chemical.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
As of March 31, 2013 and 2012

See accompanying notes to consolidated �nancial statements.

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Assets 2013 2012 2013

Current assets:

  Cash and deposits (Notes 3 and 21) ¥     36,955 ¥     37,703 $   393,138

  Deposits to related companies (Notes 3, 21 and 25) 37,317 38,698 396,989

  Trade receivables (Note 3):

    Notes 8,778 10,150 93,383

    Accounts 96,356 96,976 1,025,064

105,134 107,126 1,118,447

  Short-term investments in securities (Notes 3 and 4) 499  1,897 5,309

  Inventories (Note 5) 47,259 42,519 502,755

  Other current assets (Note 6) 25,368 22,195 269,873

  Less allowance for doubtful receivables (791) (1,639) (8,415)

        Total current assets 251,741 248,499 2,678,096

 

Property, plant and equipment, at cost (Note 7): 598,507 544,784 6,367,096

  Less accumulated depreciation (436,487) (413,489) (4,643,479)

  Net property, plant and equipment 162,020 131,295 1,723,617

 

Intangible assets

  Goodwill 24,398 24,683 259,553

  Other intangible assets 6,080 5,022 64,681

        Total intangible assets 30,478 29,705 324,234

Investments and other assets:

  Investments in af�liated companies under the equity method 7,786 6,427 82,830

  Investments in securities (Notes 3 and 4) 7,473 7,746 79,500

  Other assets (Notes 6 and 9) 19,208 18,008 204,340

  Less allowance for doubtful accounts (826) (699) (8,787)

        Total investments and other assets 33,641 31,482 357,883

¥   477,880 ¥   440,981 $5,083,830
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Liabilities and Net Assets 2013 2012 2013

Current liabilities:

  Short-term debt (Notes 3 and 8) ¥     20,387 ¥     15,931 $   216,883

  Trade payables (Note 3):

    Notes 103 63 1,096

    Accounts 48,509 50,304 516,053

48,612 50,367 517,149

  Accrued expenses 19,521 19,080 207,670

  Accrued income taxes 7,778 5,204 82,745

  Provision for loss on disaster —  12 — 

  Other current liabilities 17,292 18,820 183,957

        Total current liabilities 113,590 109,414 1,208,404

 

Long-term debt (Notes 3 and 8) 28,053 24,739 298,436

Retirement and severance bene�ts (Note 9) 17,111 16,544 182,032

Other liabilities (Notes 6 and 10) 5,722 3,045 60,873

        Total liabilities 164,476 153,742 1,749,745

        Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)

 

Net Assets:  

  Stockholders’ equity  

      Common stock (Note 12)  

      Authorized-800,000,000 shares;  

      Issued-208,364,913 shares in 2013 and    

                 208,364,913 shares in 2012 (Note 11) 15,454 15,454 164,404

    Capital surplus (Note 12) 36,113 36,113 384,181

    Retained earnings (Note 12) 259,230 248,325 2,757,766

    Treasury stock, at cost,    

      117,316 shares in 2013 and 115,612 shares in 2012(Note 13) (193) (191) (2,053)

        Total stockholders’ equity 310,604 299,701 3,304,298

  Accumulated other comprehensive income

    Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 1,077 732 11,457

    Deferred gains or losses on hedges 68 (166) 723

    Foreign currency translation adjustments (4,770) (17,188) (50,744)

        Total accumulated other comprehensive income (3,625) (16,622) (38,564)

  Minority Interests 6,425 4,160 68,351

        Total net assets 313,404 287,239 3,334,085

  ¥   477,880 ¥   440,981 $5,083,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income)

(Consolidated Statements of Income)

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2013 2012 2013

Net sales ¥   464,655 ¥   473,069 $4,943,138
Cost of sales (Note 15) (356,212) (368,983) (3,789,489)
      Gross pro�t 108,443 104,086 1,153,649

    
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 15) (84,884) (79,591) (903,021)
      Operating income 23,559 24,495 250,628

    
Other income (expenses):     
  Interest income 433 321 4,606
  Dividends income 178 286 1,894
  Equity in earnings (losses) of af�liated companies 2,078 1,288 22,106
  Foreign exchange gains (losses)  1,949 (211) 20,734
  Interest expenses (1,085) (761) (11,543)
  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1,193) (869) (12,691)
  Royalty income 1,389 1,348 14,777
  Business structure improvement expenses — (862) —
  Impairment losses on �xed assets (Note 16) (1,208) (599) (12,851)
  Gain (loss) on step acquisitions —  (191) —
  Loss on disaster (Note 17) — (2,099) —
  Insurance income — 2,810 —
  Compensation income (Note 18) 4,890 2,553 52,021
  Other, net 36 2,563 383

7,467 5,577 79,436
      Income before income taxes and minority interests 31,026 30,072 330,064

    
Income taxes (Note 6) (11,579) (11,769) (123,181)
      Income before minority interests 19,447 18,303 206,883

Minority interests in income (629) (1,876) (6,692)
      Net income ¥     18,818 ¥     16,427 $   200,191

Yen U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2013 2012 2013

Basic net income per share (Note 20) ¥       90.36 ¥       78.88 $         0.96
Diluted net income per share (Note 20) ¥            — ¥            —  $            — 

Millions of yen Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2013 2012 2013

Income before minority interests ¥     19,447 ¥     18,303 $   206,883

Other comprehensive income:
  Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 344 (770) 3,660
  Deferred gains or losses on hedges 234 (185) 2,489
  Foreign currency translation adjustments 12,877 241 136,989
  Share of other comprehensive income of associates
    accounted for using equity method 578 (100) 6,149

14,033 (814) 149,287
      Comprehensive income (Note 19) 33,480 17,489 356,170

    
  Comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 31,815 15,650 338,457
  Comprehensive income attributable to minority interests ¥       1,665  ¥       1,839 $     17,713 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries  
For the Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

See accompanying notes to consolidated �nancial statements.

Millions of yen Thousands of 
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2013 2012 2013

Common stock (Note 11):   
  Balance at beginning of year ¥     15,454 ¥     15,454 $   164,404
  Balance at end of year 15,454 15,454 164,404

    
Capital surplus:     
  Balance at beginning of year 36,113 36,113 384,181
  Gain (loss) on sale of treasury stock — 0  — 
  Balance at end of year 36,113 36,113 384,181

    
Retained earnings:     
  Balance at beginning of year 248,325 239,422 2,641,755
  Net income 18,818 16,427 200,191
  Cash dividends (Note 12) (7,913) (7,497) (84,180)
  Gain (loss) on sale of treasury stock  0  0  0 
  Other — (27) —
  Balance at end of year 259,230 248,325 2,757,766

    
Treasury stock (Note 13):     
  Balance at beginning of year (191) (188) (2,032)
  Purchase of treasury stock (2) (3) (21)
  Sale of treasury stock 0 0 0
  Balance at end of year (193) (191) (2,053)

    
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities:     
  Balance at beginning of year 732 1,553 7,787
  Net change during the year 345 (821) 3,670
  Balance at end of year 1,077 732 11,457

Deferred gains or losses on hedges:
  Balance at beginning of year (166) (41) (1,766)
  Net change during the year 234 (125) 2,489
  Balance at end of year 68 (166) 723

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
  Balance at beginning of year (17,188) (17,358) (182,851)
  Net change during the year 12,418 170 132,107
  Balance at end of year (4,770) (17,188) (50,744)

Minority interests:
  Balance at beginning of year 4,160 15,356 44,255
  Net change during the year 2,265 (11,196) 24,096
  Balance at end of year 6,425 4,160 68,351
      Total net assets ¥   313,404 ¥   287,239 $3,334,085
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

See accompanying notes to consolidated �nancial statements.

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. 
dollars (Note 2)

2013 2012 2013

Cash �ows from operating activities (Note 21):    
  Net income ¥  18,818 ¥  16,427 $200,191
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash     
    provided by operating activities:
     Depreciation 25,255 28,240 268,670
     Amortization of goodwill 3,725 808 39,628
     Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful receivables (793) (1,012) (8,436)
     Equity in (earnings) losses of af�liated companies (2,078) (1,288) (22,106)
     Net loss on retirement and sale of property, plant and equipment 900 626 9,574
     Impairment losses on �xed assets (Note 16) 1,208  599 12,851
     Deferred income taxes 404 3,383 4,298
     Minority interests in income 629 1,876 6,692
     Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 9,800 1,023 104,255
     Decrease (increase) in inventories (1,375) (2,971) (14,628)
     Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable - other (1,745) (166) (18,564)
     Increase (decrease) in trade payables (8,129) (2,324) (86,479)
     Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on disaster (12)  (2,449) (128)
     Increase (decrease) in retirement and severance  bene�ts 302 500 3,213
     Other 1,022 (1,200) 10,873
        Net cash provided by operating activities 47,931 42,072 509,904

      
Cash �ows from investing activities:       
  Purchases of short-term investment in securities  — (500)  — 
  Proceeds from redemption of short-term investment in securities  2,110 5,700  22,447 
  Purchases of property, plant and equipment (48,040) (33,546) (511,064)
  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,149 1,921 12,223
  Purchases of subsidiaries’ and af�liated companies’ 
    stock and investments in securities (2,597) (38,301) (27,628)
  Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries’ and af�liated 
    companies’ stock and investments in securities 492 4,083 5,234
  Purchases of investments in subsidiaries resulting in 
    change in scope of consolidation (2,898) (4,944) (30,830)
  Other (3,398) (1,615) (36,148)
        Net cash used in investing activities (53,182) (67,202) (565,766)

Cash �ows from �nancing activities:
  Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt (523) 2,911 (5,564)
  Proceeds from long-term debt  5,217  1,606  55,500
  Payments of long-term debt (1,621) (1,856) (17,245)
  Proceeds from issuance of debentures  — 10,000  — 
  Dividends paid to stockholders (7,913) (7,497) (84,180)
  Dividends paid to minority stockholders of consolidated subsidiaries (98) (497) (1,043)
  Other 2,071 (56) 22,032
        Net cash provided by (used in) �nancing activities (2,867) 4,611 (30,500)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 5,761 (67) 61,288
        Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,357) (20,586) (25,074)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 76,318 96,775 811,894
  Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents resulting
    from change in �scal year-end of consolidated subsidiaries —  129 — 
  Increase in cash and cash equivalents from newly
    consolidated subsidiaries 17  — 180
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Notes 21) ¥  73,978 ¥  76,318 $787,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hitachi Chemical 
Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and consolidated subsidiaries are prepared on 
the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are 
different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure require-
ments of International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled 
from the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company as 
required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan.

In addition, for the convenience of readers outside Japan, the consol-
idated financial statements, including the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, include certain reclassifications and additional infor-
mation which is not required under accounting principles generally 
accepted in Japan.

(b) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company and those of its effectively controlled subsidiaries, whether 
directly or indirectly controlled. All significant intercompany accounts 
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Most of the investments in affiliated companies are stated at their 
underlying equity value, and the appropriate portion of the earnings of 
such companies is included in consolidated net income. The investments 
in affiliated companies which do not materially affect earnings and equity 
are stated at cost.

Goodwill, based on the fair value, acquired by the Company is being 
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful period by 
each individual investment in subsidiaries, not exceeding twenty years or, 
if the amount is not material, charged immediately to earnings.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the 
Company and its consolidated companies consider all highly liquid invest-
ments with insignificant risk of change in value, which have maturities of 
generally three months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents. 

(d) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
General provision for doubtful receivables is provided by applying a 
certain reserve percentage of the receivables based on experience from 
past transactions. When considered necessary, specific reserves are made 
based on the assessment of individual receivables.

(e) Investments in Securities
Securities are to be classified into one of the following two categories 
and accounted for as follows:
  • Securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold 
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and measured at 
amortized cost.
  •  Securities other than held-to-maturity securities are classified as avail-
able-for-sale securities. Unrealized holding gains and losses of available-
for-sale securities with fair values are reported as a net amount in a 
separate component of net assets until realized. Available-for-sale securi-
ties without fair values are carried at cost.  

  In computing realized gain or loss, cost of available-for-sale securi-
ties is principally determined by the moving-average method.

(f) Inventories
Inventories are principally stated at cost determined by the moving-
average method. When their costs exceed the net realized value, inven-
tories are written down to the net realized value.

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated principally on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life.

Prior to April 1, 2012, depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
was calculated by the declining-balance method based on the estimated 
useful lives, except for certain buildings of the Company and domestic 
subsidiaries acquired on or after April 1, 1998, which are depreciated by 
the straight-line method. Effective April 1, 2012, the Company and its 
domestic subsidiaries elected to change the method of depreciating 
property, plant and equipment from declining balance method to 
straight-line method.

As the customers continue to expand their operations overseas 
rapidly, the Group has been expanding  their operations overseas in order 
to meet the customers’ increasing demand in the overseas market based 
on the Company’s medium-term management policy. In addition, after 
experiencing a production halt caused by the Great East Japan Earth-
quake, the Group increased their production capacity in the overseas 
operations which is also intended to stabilize their supply of the products 
in case of a similar natural disaster. Many of those facilities newly estab-
lished as a result of these efforts have commenced their production 
during the year ended March 31, 2013 and it is expected that this trend 
will continue . As for the domestic operations, the production volume is 
expected to be secured through a shift to highly value-added products 
and domestic property, plant and equipment will be operated consis-
tently and utilization of the domestic property, plant and equipment will 
be also more consistent. Accordingly, the Company and its domestic 
subsidiaries concluded that the new method is preferable as it better 
reflects the operations of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. 

As a result of this change, operating income and income before 
income taxes and minority interests all increased by ¥2,513 million 
($26,734 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2013.

(h) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are amortized principally on a straight-line basis. Cost 
incurred for computer software for internal use is capitalized and 
amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

(i) Impairment of Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
When amounts of undiscounted future cash flows of fixed assets are less 
than the carrying amounts, the fixed assets are determined to be 
impaired. Then, an amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the 
recoverable amount is recognized as an impairment loss in earnings.

The recoverable amount of fixed assets is the greater of the net 
selling price or the present value of the future cash flows expected to be 
derived from the fixed assets. The Company and consolidated subsid-
iaries identify groups of assets by their business location and business 
division as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash 
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets 
or groups of assets. 
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(j) Retirement and Severance Benefits
Allowance for retirement and severance benefits for employees is 
provided based on the estimated retirement benefit obligation and fair 
value of the pension assets.

Prior service benefits and costs are recognized as income or expense 
on a straight-line basis over certain years, principally 10 years, not 
exceeding the expected average remaining service periods of the 
employees active at the date of the amendment. Actuarial gains and 
losses are recognized as income or expense on a straight-line basis from 
the next year of incurrence over certain years, principally 10 years, not 
exceeding the expected average remaining service periods of the 
employees participating in the plans.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments
In principle, net assets or liabilities arising from derivative financial instru-
ments are measured at fair value, with unrealized gain or loss included in 
earnings. Hedging transactions, that meet the criteria of hedge 
accounting as regulated in “Accounting Standard for Financial Instru-
ments,” are accounted for using deferral hedge accounting, which 
requires the unrealized gain or loss to be deferred as net unrealized gains 
or losses on hedge transactions, component of net assets, until gain or 
loss relating to the hedge object is recognized.

(l) Foreign Currency Translations
Foreign currency transactions are translated into yen on the basis of the 
exchange rates in effect at the transaction date. At year-end, monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into 
yen at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or 
losses resulting from the translation of foreign currencies, including gains 
and losses on settlement, are credited or charged to earnings as 
incurred.

The financial statements of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are 
translated into the reporting currency of yen as follows: all assets and 
liabilities are translated at the exchange rates in effect at the balance 
sheet date; stockholders’ equity accounts are translated at historical 
rates; income and expenses are translated at an average of the exchange 
rates in effect during the year; and a comprehensive adjustment resulting 
from the translation of assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity is 
included in minority interests and foreign currency translation adjust-
ments as a separate component of net assets.

(m) Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability 
method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the 
expected future tax consequences attributable to differences between 
the financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities 
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted tax rates expected to be applied to taxable 
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to 
be recovered or settled.

(n) Consumption Taxes
Transactions subject to consumption taxes are recorded at amounts 
exclusive of consumption taxes.

(o) Net Income per Share
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing income available to 
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding during each year. Diluted net income per share 
reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other 
contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into 
common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then 
shared in the earnings of the entity.

(p) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s consolidated 
financial statements in order to conform to the current year presenta-
tions.

(q) Standards issued but not yet effective
On May 17, 2012, Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ)  issued 
ASBJ Statement No.26, “Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” 
and ASBJ Guidance No.25, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for 
Retirement Benefits,” which replaced the Accounting Standard for 
Retirement Benefits that had been issued by the Business Accounting 
Council in 1998 and the other related guidance.

Under the revised accounting standard, actuarial gains and losses 
and past service costs shall be recognized within net assets in the consol-
idated balance sheets, after adjusting tax effects, and the funding deficit 
or surplus shall be recognized as a liability or asset. Also, the new 
accounting standard allows a choice for the method of attributing 
expected benefits to periods of either the straight-line basis or plan’s 
benefit formula basis. In addition, the determination method of the 
discount rate was amended.

The Company and certain subsidiaries expect to apply the revised 
accounting standard from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 
31, 2014.

The effect of adoption of this revised accounting standard is now 
under assessment at the time of preparation of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements.
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In principle, funds are managed through short-term deposits and are 
procured through debentures and bank loans. Additionally, derivative 
financial instruments are used in order to manage its exposure to 
fluctuate in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and 
commodity prices.

Trade notes and accounts receivables is subject to the credit risk of 
customers. In order to minimize this risk, the Company and its subsid-
iaries periodically monitor the financial condition of customers in accor-
dance with the credit management standards and claims management 
standards. The Company and its subsidiaries also work to fully grasp the 
financial condition of customers and manage the settlement terms and 

balances of each customer.
Short-term investments and investments in securities primarily consist 

of bonds and equity securities of the trading partners. In principle, only 
bonds that are highly safe are held, therefore, credit risk is minimal. 
Equity securities, on the other hand, is subject to risks related to the 
fluctuation of market value. In order to manage these risks, the Company 
and its subsidiaries periodically reconfirm the market value of the equity 
securities held and the financial condition of trading partners, and reval-
uate the holding of such equity securities while also taking into consider-
ation the relationships with these trading partners.

2. Basis of Financial Statement Translation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader, have been translated into U.S. 
dollars at the rate of ¥94=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2013. This translation 

should not be construed as a representation that any amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars.

3. Financial Instruments

The following table provides the carrying amount, the fair value and the difference between these two items of major financial instruments as of 
March 31, 2013 and 2012:         

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Millions of yen

Carrying amount Fair value Difference Carrying amount Fair value Difference

2013 2012

Assets:

  Cash and deposits ¥  36,955 ¥  36,955 ¥         — ¥  37,703 ¥  37,703 ¥         —

  Deposits to related companies  37,317  37,317  —  38,698  38,698 —

  Trade notes and accounts receivables (Note a) 105,134  107,126 

    Less allowance for doubtful receivables (Note b) (770) (1,595)

104,364  104,353 (11) 105,531  105,510 (21)

  Short-term investments and investments in securities

    Held-to-maturity securities 101  98 (3)  101 99 (2)

    Available-for-sale securities  6,164 6,164  —  7,407  7,407  — 

Total Assets ¥184,901 ¥184,887 ¥       (14) ¥189,440 ¥189,417 ¥        (23)

Liabilities:

  Trade notes and accounts payables (Note c) ¥  48,612 ¥  48,612 ¥         — ¥  50,367 ¥  50,367 ¥         —

  Short-term debt  20,387  20,387  —  15,931  15,931 — 

  Long-term debt

    Debentures 20,000  20,945 945 20,000  20,668 668 

    Long-term loans payable  8,053  8,117  64  4,739  4,810  71 

Total Liabilities ¥  97,052 ¥  98,061 ¥     1,009 ¥  91,037 ¥  91,776 ¥       739

Derivative �nancial instrument transactions (Note d):

  For which hedge accounting is not applied ¥   (1,882) ¥   (1,882)  ¥          — ¥       (553) ¥       (553) ¥         — 

  For which hedge accounting is applied 109 109  — (362)  (362)  — 

Total Derivatives ¥   (1,773) ¥   (1,773) ¥          — ¥       (915) ¥       (915) ¥         —
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The method of calculating the fair value of financial instruments is as 
follows:
Cash and deposits, deposits to related companies
As these items are settled in the short term, the fair value of these items 
approximates the book value, therefore, the book value is used.

Trade notes and accounts receivables
The fair value of items settled in the short term approximates the book 
value, therefore, the book value is used. The fair value of installment 
receivables is determined by discounting the amount of receivables by a 
rate that reflects the credit risk.

Short-term investments and investments in securities
The fair value of equity securities is the quoted market prices on the stock 
exchange. The fair value of bond is the value provided by the counter-
party financial institution.

Trade notes and accounts payables, short-term debt
As these items are settled in the short term, the fair value of these items 
approximates the book value, therefore, the book value is used. 

Debentures
The fair value of debentures issued by the Company is the value provided 
by the counterparty financial institution.

Long-term loans payable
Loans with floating interest rates reflect market interest rates over the 
short term, and the Company’s credit standing has not changed signifi-
cantly after the loan was made. The fair value approximates the book 
value, therefore, the book value is used. The fair value of fixed-rate loans 
is determined by discounting the total amount of principal and interest 
by the assumed rate on new borrowings of the same type.

Derivative financial instrument transactions
The fair value of derivative financial instrument transactions is the value 
provided by the counterparty financial institutions.

Note: a. The hedged foreign currency receivables recorded using forward foreign exchange contract rate is included. The amounts as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 included are ¥1,146 million ($12,191 thousand) and ¥676 million, 

respectively.

Note: b. These amounts are general provision for doubtful receivables and specific reserves for individual receivables associated with trade notes and accounts receivables.

Note: c. The hedged foreign currency payables recorded using forward foreign exchange contract rate is included. The amount as of March 31, 2012 was ¥40 million.

Note: d. These represent net assets or liabilities arising from derivative transactions. The figures in parentheses indicate net liabilities.

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

2013

Assets:

  Cash and deposits $   393,138 $   393,138 $            —

  Deposits to related companies  396,989  396,989 — 

  Trade notes and accounts receivables (Note a) 1,118,447

    Less allowance for doubtful receivables (Note b) (8,191)

 1,110,256  1,110,139 (117)

  Short-term investments and investments in securities

    Held-to-maturity securities  1,075  1,043 (32)

    Available-for-sale securities  65,574  65,574  — 

Total Assets $1,967,032 $1,966,883 $         (149)

Liabilities:

  Trade notes and accounts payables (Note c) $   517,149 $   517,149  $            — 

  Short-term debt 216,883  216,883  — 

  Long-term debt

    Debentures  212,766  222,819 10,053 

    Long-term loans payable  85,670  86,351  681 

Total Liabilities $1,032,468 $1,043,202 $10,734

Derivative �nancial instrument transactions (Note d):

  For which hedge accounting is not applied  $    (20,021)  $    (20,021)  $            — 

  For which hedge accounting is applied 1,159 1,159  — 

Total Derivatives $    (18,862) $    (18,862) $            —
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Redemption schedules of receivables and securities with a maturity date are as follows:

 The previous table does not include non-marketable securities because no quoted market price is available and it is extremely difficult in estimating 
fair value. The carrying amount of non-marketable securities at March 31, 2013 and 2012 totaled ¥9,493 million ($100,989 thousand) and ¥8,562 
million, respectively.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Millions of yen

Within
one year

After one 
year through

five years

After five
years through

ten years
After

ten years
Within

one year

After one 
year through

five years

After five
years through

ten years
After

ten years

2013 2012

Deposits ¥  36,608 ¥         — ¥         —  ¥         —  ¥  37,356 ¥         — ¥         —  ¥         —  

Deposits to related companies 37,317  —   —   —  38,698  —   —   —  

Trade notes and accounts receivables 104,293  71  —   —  105,395  136  —   —  

Short-term investments and investments in securities

  Held-to-maturity securities

    Debentures:  —  100  —   —   —   100  —   —  

  Available-for-sale securities

    Debt securities: 500  — — 1,000 1,900  800 — 1,000

¥178,718 ¥       171 ¥         — ¥    1,000 ¥183,349 ¥    1,036 ¥         —  ¥    1,000

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Within
one year

After one 
year through

five years

After five
years through

ten years
After

ten years

2013

Deposits $   389,447 $           — $           — $         — 

Deposits to related companies 396,989  —  —  — 

Trade notes and accounts receivables 1,109,500 756  —  — 

Short-term investments and investments in securities

  Held-to-maturity securities

    Debentures:  — 1,063  —  — 

  Available-for-sale securities

    Debt securities: 5,319 — — 10,638

$1,901,255 $    1,819 $           — $  10,638
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4. Short-term Investments and Investments in Securities
Held-to-maturity securities

Available-for-sale securities

Millions of yen

Carrying amount Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses) Carrying amount Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses)

2013 2012

Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding gains:  
  Government bonds, municipal bonds and other ¥       — ¥        — ¥       — ¥        — ¥                  — ¥       — 
  Debentures  —  —  —  —  —  — 
  Other bonds  —  —  —  —  —  — 

 —  —  —  —  —  — 
Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding losses:       
  Government bonds, municipal bonds and other  —  —  —  —  —  — 
  Debentures 101 98 (3)  101   99  (2)
  Other bonds  —  —  —  —  —  — 

101 98 (3)   101    99  (2)
¥     101 ¥       98 ¥       (3) ¥     101 ¥       99 ¥        (2)

Millions of yen

Carrying amount Acquisition cost Unrealized gains (losses) Carrying amount Acquisition cost Unrealized gains (losses)

2013 2012

Available-for-sale securities with gross unrealized holding gains:  
  Equity securities ¥  4,381 ¥  2,366 ¥  2,015 ¥  3,371 ¥  1,844 ¥  1,527
  Debt securities 1,003 1,000   3   —  —  — 
  Other securities  —   —   —   —  —  — 

5,384 3,366 2,018 3,371 1,844 1,527
Available-for-sale securities with gross unrealized holding losses:       
  Equity securities 142 160 (18) 238 264 (26)
  Debt securities 499 500 (1)  3,638  3,700 (62)
  Other securities 139 139  —  160 160  — 

780 799 (19) 4,036 4,124 (88)
¥  6,164 ¥  4,165 ¥  1,999 ¥  7,407 ¥  5,968 ¥  1,439

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Carrying amount Acquisition cost Unrealized gains (losses)

2013

Available-for-sale securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
  Equity securities $46,606 $25,170 $21,436 
  Debt securities 10,670 10,638 32 
  Other securities  —  —  — 

57,276 35,808 21,468
Available-for-sale securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
  Equity securities 1,510 1,702 (192)
  Debt securities 5,309 5,319 (10)
  Other securities 1,479  1,479  — 

8,298 8,500 (202)
$65,574 $44,308  $21,266 

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Carrying amount Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses)

2013

Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
  Government bonds, municipal bonds and other $        — $        — $        — 
  Debentures  —  —  — 
  Other bonds  —  —  — 

 —  —  — 
Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding losses: 
  Government bonds, municipal bonds and other  —  —  — 
  Debentures 1,075 1,043 (32)
  Other bonds  —  —  — 

1,075 1,043 (32)
$  1,075 $  1,043 $       (32)
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5. Inventories
Inventories as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:

6. Income Taxes
The income tax expenses (benefits) reflected in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 consist of the 
following:

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 
are presented below:

Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets under the following captions: 

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a number of taxes based on income.
Reconciliations between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate as a percentage of income before income taxes and minority interests 

are omitted, as the discrepancies are immaterial.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Finished and semi-�nished goods ¥  20,163 ¥  19,160 $214,500 
Work in process 12,006 10,387 127,723
Raw materials 15,090 12,972 160,532

¥  47,259 ¥  42,519 $502,755 

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Current tax expense ¥  11,175 ¥    8,386 $118,883 
Deferred tax expense (bene�t) 404 3,383 4,298

¥  11,579 ¥  11,769 $123,181

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Other current assets ¥    6,259 ¥    7,096 $  66,585 
Other assets 8,006 7,280 85,170
Other current liabilities (2) — (21)
Other liabilities (588) (232) (6,255)
Net deferred tax assets ¥  13,675 ¥  14,144 $145,479 

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Deferred tax assets:
  Retirement and severance bene�ts ¥    8,074 ¥    7,960 $  85,894 
  Accrued bonus 3,251 3,317 34,585
  Accrued business tax 689 473 7,330
  Allowance for doubtful receivables 413 636 4,394
  Other 16,820 15,550 178,935
Total gross deferred tax assets 29,247 27,936 311,138
  Valuation allowance (12,111) (11,479) (128,840)
Total deferred tax assets 17,136 16,457 182,298
Deferred tax liabilities:
  Tax purpose reserves regulated by Japanese Tax Law (59) (40) (628)
  Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (698) (507) (7,426)
  Prepaid pension bene�t cost (1,569) (1,396) (16,691)
  Other (1,135) (370) (12,074)
Total deferred tax liabilities (3,461) (2,313) (36,819)
Net deferred tax assets ¥  13,675 ¥  14,144 $145,479 
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, at cost as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following:

8. Short-term and Long-term Debt
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 is summarized as follows:   

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after March 31, 2013 are as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Buildings and structures ¥   146,985 ¥   132,709 $1,563,670

Machinery and transportation equipment 339,725 321,244 3,614,096

Land 20,165 18,334 214,521

Construction in progress 23,508 10,342 250,085

Others 68,124  62,155 724,724

¥   598,507 ¥   544,784 $6,367,096

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Debentures:  

  8th series, due 2016, interest 2.17%
  9th series, due 2022, interest 1.19%

¥     10,000
10,000

¥     10,000
10,000 

$   106,383
106,383

Loans, principally from banks:

  Maturing 2014–2018, interest 3.8% (average) 8,053 4,739 85,670

¥     28,053 ¥     24,739 $   298,436

Years ending March 31, Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2014 ¥             —   $             —

2015 1,159 12,330

2016 2,960 31,489

2017 859 9,138

2018 3,075 32,713

2019 and thereafter      — —

¥       8,053 $     85,670



Actuarial assumptions used in the accounting for the Company’s and subsidiaries’ plans are principally as follows:
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9. Liability for Retirement and Severance Bene�ts

De�ned Bene�t Plans
The amount of cost recognized for the Company’s and certain subsidiaries’ contribution to the plans for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 is 
¥944 million ($10,043 thousand) and ¥968 million, respectively.

De�ned Bene�t Plans
The Company and certain subsidiaries have defined-benefit corporate pension plans, tax qualified pension plans, and lump-sum retirement plans to 
provide retirement and severance benefits to substantially all of their employees.

Funded status of the Company’s and subsidiaries’ plans as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 is summarized as follows:

Net periodic benefit costs for the funded benefit pension plans and the unfunded lump-sum payment plans for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 
2012 consisted of the following components:

Note: Besides retirement and severance bene�ts under the de�ned bene�t pension plans above, premium retirement bene�ts of ¥214 million ($2,277 thousand) and ¥213 million are 
charged to earnings during the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

  Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Projected bene�t obligations ¥     (96,277) ¥     (90,577) $(1,024,223)

Plan assets at fair value 75,946 68,675 807,936

Funded status (20,331) (21,902) (216,287)

Unrecognized actuarial loss 7,648 9,473 81,362

Unrecognized prior service bene�t (230) (368) (2,447)

Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets ¥     (12,913) ¥     (12,797) $   (137,372)

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Service cost, net of employees’ contributions ¥        3,039 ¥        2,848 $      32,330 

Interest cost 1,977 2,239 21,032

Expected return on plan assets (1,259) (1,167) (13,394)

Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss 1,815 1,885 19,308

Amortization of unrecognized prior service bene�t (223) (257) (2,372)

Net periodic bene�t cost ¥        5,349 ¥        5,548 $      56,904 

Prepaid pension bene�t cost (other assets) ¥        4,198 ¥        3,747 $      44,660

Retirement and severance bene�ts (17,111) (16,544) (182,032)

¥     (12,913) ¥     (12,797) $   (137,372)

2013 2012

Discount rate 1.0〜2.5% 1.5〜2.8%

Expected return rate on plan assets 2.0% 2.0%
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The Company’s common stock has no par value in accordance with the 
Japanese Corporate Law (JCL). Under JCL, at least 50% of the amount 
actually paid in or provided in consideration for newly issued stocks is 
designated as stated common stock and proceeds in excess of the 
amount designated as stated common stock are recorded as capital 
surplus.

The JCL requires an amount equal to at least 10% of distributions of 
retained earnings to be appropriated as legal reserve, which are included 
in capital surplus and retained earnings, until legal reserve equals 25% of 

stated common stock. In addition, common stock, capital surplus and 
retained earnings, including legal reserves, can generally be transferred 
to each other upon resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

Cash dividends during the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 in 
the consolidated statements of changes in net assets, represent dividends 
resolved during those years.

10. Asset Retirement Obligations

12. Net Assets and Cash Dividends

The Company has recorded asset retirement obligations pertaining to the legal obligation to eliminate asbestos and other harmful substances present in 
property, plant and equipment upon their retirement and to the obligation to return offices and other leased facilities to their original condition (restitu-
tion obligations) as stated in their lease contracts.

Methods of calculating the amounts for asset retirement obligations in the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Changes in applicable asset retirement obligations in the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

11. Common Stock
Issued shares, changes in shares and the amount of common stock for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2013 
Dividends paid 

Estimated 
period of use Discount rate

Estimated 
period of use Discount rate

2013 2012

Obligations to eliminate asbestos, etc. 5–35 years 0.5–2.3% 5–35 years 0.5–2.3%

Restitution obligations 8–60 years 1.0–2.4% 8–60 years 1.0–2.4%

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Balance at beginning of year ¥       943 ¥       938 $  10,032

  Increase due to acquisition of property, plant and equipment 231 4 2,458

  Adjustment due to passage of time 14 13 149

  Decrease due to ful�llment of obligations (134) (12) (1,426)

Balance at end of year ¥    1,054 ¥       943 $  11,213

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Issued shares Amount Amount

Balances as of April 1, 2011 208,364,913 ¥  15,454

Balances as of March 31, 2012 208,364,913 15,454 $164,404 

Balances as of March 31, 2013 208,364,913 ¥  15,454 $164,404 

Resolution Type of shares

Total dividends 
(Millions of 

yen )

Total 
dividends

 ( Thousands  
of U.S.dollars )

Dividends
per share

( Yen )

Dividends
per share

( U.S.
dollars )

Cut-off
date

Effective
date

Meeting of the Board of Direc-
tors on May 28, 2012

Common 
stock

¥  3,748 $39,872 ¥       18 $    0.19
March 31, 

2012
May 29, 

2012

Meeting of the Board of Direc-
tors on October 29, 2012

Common 
stock

¥  4,165 $44,309 ¥       20 $    0.21
September 30, 

2012
November 28, 

2012
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The Japanese Corporate Law (JCL) allows a company to acquire treasury 
stocks upon shareholders’ approval to the extent that sufficient distribut-
able funds are available. If the Board of Directors’ authority is stated in 
the Articles of Incorporation, a company is allowed to purchase treasury 
stock only with the Board of Directors’ approval. Purchase of treasury 
stock is authorized with the approval by the board of directors under the 
Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

Pursuant to the provisions of the JCL, shareholders may request the 

Company to acquire their shares below a minimum trading lot (100 
shares) as shares below a minimum trading lot cannot be publicly traded 
and do not carry a voting right. The JCL also states that a shareholder 
holding shares less than a minimum trading lot is entitled to request the 
company to sell its treasury stock, if any, to the shareholder up to a 
minimum trading lot, provided that sale of treasury stock is allowed 
under the Articles of Incorporation. Sale of treasury stock is allowed 
under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

13. Treasury Stock

Dividends with the cut-off date in the year ended March 31, 2013 and the effective date in the year ending March 31,2014

For the year ended March 31, 2012 
Dividends paid 

Dividends with the cut-off date in the year ended March 31, 2012 and the effective date in the year ended March 31,2013

The changes in treasury stock for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Shares

Balances as of April 1, 2011 113,682

  Purchase of treasury stock 2,105

  Sale of treasury stock (175)

Balances as of March 31, 2012 115,612

  Purchase of treasury stock 1,818

  Sale of treasury stock (114)

Balances as of March 31, 2013 117,316

Resolution Type of shares

Total dividends 
( Millions of 

yen )

Total 
dividends

 ( Thousands  
of U.S.dollars )

Source of
dividends

Dividends
per share

( Yen )

Dividends
per share

( U.S.
dollars )

Cut-off
date

Effective
date

Meeting of the Board of 
Directors on May 29, 2013

Common 
stock

¥  3,748 $39,872
Retained
earnings

¥       18 $     0.19
March 31, 

2013
May 30, 

2013

Resolution Type of shares

Total dividends 
( Millions of 

yen )

Dividends
per share

( Yen )
Cut-off

date
Effective

date

Meeting of the Board of Direc-
tors on May 26, 2011

Common 
stock

¥  3,749 ¥       18
March 31, 

2011
June 8, 
2011

Meeting of the Board of Direc-
tors on October 25, 2011

Common 
stock

¥  3,749 ¥       18
September 30, 

2011
November 29, 

2011

Resolution Type of shares

Total dividends 
( Millions of 

yen )
Source of
dividends

Dividends
per share

( Yen )
Cut-off

date
Effective

date

Meeting of the Board of Direc-
tors on May 28, 2012

Common 
stock

¥  3,748
Retained
earnings

¥       18
March 31, 

2012
May 29, 

2012
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 Production facilities and other assets for which value declined due to 
decreased profitability were devalued from the carrying amount to the 
recoverable amount, and resulted in an impairment loss of ¥1,208 million 
($12,851 thousand), which was reported in impairment losses on fixed 
assets in the consolidated statements of income.  

 The Company and its subsidiaries determine recoverable amount 
using either net selling price or value in use. Net selling price  is based on 
the assessed value for property tax purpose, which is adjusted as appro-
priate. Value in use is based on the present value of future cash flows 
calculated using a discount rate of 5.0 %.  

Idle assets for which value declined due to some factors were 
devalued from the carrying amount to the recoverable amount and 
resulted in an impairment loss of ¥346 million, which was reported in 
impairment losses on fixed assets in the consolidated statements of 
income. Production facilities and other assets for which value declined 
due to decreased profitability were devalued from the carrying amount 
to the recoverable amount and resulted in an impairment loss of ¥253 

million, which was reported in impairment losses on fixed assets in the 
consolidated statements of income.

The Company and its subsidiaries determine recoverable amount 
using either net selling price or value in use. Net selling price  is based on 
the appraisal. Value in use is based on the present value of future cash 
flows. Discount rates are omitted due to the negative undiscounted 
future cash flows.

16. Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2013, certain consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2012, certain consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:

17. Loss on Disaster
For the year ended March 31, 2012
Loss on disaster due to the Great East Japan Earthquake occurred on March 11, 2011 is as follows:

Loss on disaster due to the flood in Thailand is as follows:

Contingent liabilities for guarantees for bank loans of employees 
amounted to ¥117 million ($1,245 thousand) and ¥144 million at March 
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

It is a common practice in Japan for companies, in the ordinary 
course of business, to receive promissory notes in the settlement of trade 

accounts receivable and to transfer them by endorsement to suppliers in 
the settlement of accounts payable. The Company and its subsidiaries are 
contingently liable for trade notes endorsed, which amounted to ¥679 
million ($7,223 thousand) and ¥608 million at March 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

15. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses included in general and administrative expenses and gross production cost for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 
2012 amounted to ¥25,534 million ($271,638 thousand) and ¥25,680 million, respectively.

Location Use Type

Mexico, other Production facilities and other Machinery and equipment, and other

Location Use Type

Katori-gun, Chiba Prefecture Idle Machinery and equipment, and other

Chikusei-shi, Ibaraki Prefecture and other Production facilities and other Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other

Millions of yen

2012

Factory relocation expenses ¥1,308

Fixed cost incurred during the business interruption and other 391

¥1,699

Millions of yen

2012

Loss on disposal of �xed assets ¥     77 

Loss on valuation and disposal of inventories 267

Fixed cost incurred during the business interruption 185

Insurance income (512)

Cost of restoration, removal and other 383

¥   400 
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18. Compensation income
The compensation income for the year ended March 31, 2013 represents the amount the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries received from Tokyo 
Electric Power Company (“TEPCO”) as a compensation for the lost income during the period from September 1, 2011 to August 31, 2012 and certain 
other additional costs incurred during the period from March 11 to August 31, 2011.

The compensation income for the year ended March 31, 2012 represents the amount the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries received from 
TEPCO as a compensation for the lost income during the period from March 11 to August 31, 2011.

19.Reclassification adjustment and tax effect amounts relating to other comprehensive income
Reclassification adjustment and tax effect amounts relating to other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as 
follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities:

  Amount arising during the year ¥       553 ¥      (117) $    5,883

  Reclassification adjustment (17) (1,289) (181)

    Amount before tax effect 536 (1,406) 5,702

    Tax effect (192) 636 (2,042)

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 344 (770) 3,660

Deferred gains or losses on hedges:

  Amount arising during the year 185 (1,530) 1,968

  Reclassification adjustment 295 111 3,138

  Asset acquisition cost adjustment (101) 1,123 (1,074)

    Amount before tax effect 379 (296) 4,032

    Tax effect (145) 111 (1,543)

Deferred gains or losses on hedges 234 (185) 2,489

Foreign currency translation adjustments:

  Amount arising during the year 12,883 249 137,053

  Reclassification adjustment (6) (8) (64)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 12,877 241 136,989

Share of other comprehensive income of associates

  accounted for using the equity method:

  Amount arising during the year 578 (100) 6,149

Total other comprehensive income ¥  14,033 ¥      (814) $149,287
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The components of cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

21. Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest and income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Net assets per share as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

20. Amount Per Share
The reconciliation of the number of shares and the amounts used in the basic and diluted net income per share computations for the years ended March 
31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:   

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Net income ¥   18,818 ¥   16,427 $ 200,191

Net income not applicable to common stockholders — —  —  

Net income on which basic net income per share is calculated 18,818 16,427 200,191

Effect of dilutive securities — — —  

Net income on which diluted net income per share is calculated ¥   18,818 ¥   16,427 $ 200,191 

Yen U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Net income per share:

  Basic ¥     90.36 ¥     78.88 $       0.96 

  Diluted ¥           — ¥           — $           —

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Cash paid during the year for:

  Interest ¥     1,105 ¥        720 $   11,755 

  Income taxes ¥     8,735 ¥     9,706 $   92,926

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Cash and deposits ¥   36,955 ¥   37,703 $ 393,138  

Time deposits with over three months maturity (294) (83) (3,127)

Deposits to related companies 37,317 38,698 396,989

  Cash and cash equivalents ¥   73,978 ¥   76,318 $ 787,000

Yen U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Basic ¥1,474.11 ¥1,359.33 $     15.68

Thousands of shares

2013 2012

Weighted average number of shares on 

  which basic net income per share is calculated 208,248 208,250

Effect of dilutive securities  —  — 

Number of shares on which diluted net income per share is calculated 208,248 208,250
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The Company and certain subsidiaries operate globally and are exposed 
to market risks arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange 
rates, interest rates and commodity prices. In order to manage those 
risks, the Company and certain subsidiaries enter into various contracts 
on derivative financial instruments, including forward exchange contracts, 
currency option contracts, currency swap contracts, interest rate option 
contracts and commodity swap contracts. Forward exchange contracts 
are utilized to manage risks arising from foreign currency receivables 
from export of finished goods; foreign currency payables from the import 
of raw materials; and forecasted foreign currency sales and purchase 
transactions. Currency option contracts, interest rate option contracts 
and interest rate swap contracts are utilized to manage foreign currency 
risk and interest rate risk for debts. Commodity swap contracts are 
utilized to manage the commodity price fluctuation risk on purchased 
raw material (lead and copper). The Company and its subsidiaries have 

no derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. In addition, the 
Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to potential credit-related 
losses in the event of non-performance by counterparties to financial 
instruments and derivative financial instruments, but it is not expected 
that any counterparties will fail to meet their obligations, because most 
of the counterparties are financial institutions with a sound credit 
profile.

The Company and its subsidiaries have also developed hedging 
policies to control various aspects of derivative financial transactions 
including authorization levels and transaction volumes. Based on these 
policies, the Company and its subsidiaries hedge, within certain scopes, 
risks arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest 
rates and commodity prices. The Company and its subsidiaries review 
periodically the effectiveness of all the hedge policies to take account of 
the cumulative cash flows and any changes in the market.

22. Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Millions of yen

Notional amount Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses) Notional amount Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses)

2013 2012

Currency option contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies ¥         — ¥          — ¥          — ¥       863 ¥        (36) ¥        (26)

  To buy foreign currencies — — — 551 1 (8)

Forward exchange contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies 16,870 (925) (925) 14,383 (566) (566)

  To buy foreign currencies 3,714 64 64 2,566 61 61

Currency swap contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies 1,557 (338) (338)  600 (15) (15)

  To buy foreign currencies 3,267 (678) (678)  1,297 1 1

¥  25,408 ¥   (1,877) ¥   (1,877) ¥  20,260 ¥      (554) ¥      (553)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Notional amount Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses)

2013

Currency option contracts:  

  To sell foreign currencies $          — $          — $          —

  To buy foreign currencies — — —

Forward exchange contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies 179,468 (9,840) (9,840)

  To buy foreign currencies 39,511 681 681

Currency swap contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies 16,564 (3,596) (3,596)

  To buy foreign currencies 34,755 (7,213) (7,213)

$270,298 $ (19,968) $ (19,968)
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The fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is applied as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Processing method in principle

Assigning method of foreign forward exchange contracts

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.

Millions of yen

Notional amount Estimated fair value Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013 2012

Commodity swap contracts:

  Variable receipt and �xed payment ¥       79 ¥        (5) ¥        — ¥       — 

¥       79 ¥        (5) ¥        — ¥       — 

Millions of yen

Notional amount Estimated fair value Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013 2012

Forward exchange contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies ¥  1,146 ¥       — ¥     676 ¥       —

  To buy foreign currencies — —  40 —

¥  1,146 ¥       — ¥     716 ¥       —

Millions of yen

Notional amount Estimated fair value Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013 2012

Currency option contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies ¥        — ¥        —  ¥        — ¥        —
  To buy foreign currencies — —  —  —

Forward exchange contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies 2,755 (102) 3,207 (152)

  To buy foreign currencies — — — —

¥  2,755 ¥    (102) ¥  3,207 ¥    (152)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013

Commodity swap contracts:

  Variable receipt and �xed payment $     840 $      (53)

$     840 $      (53) 

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013

Forward exchange contracts:  

  To sell foreign currencies $12,191 $        — 

  To buy foreign currencies  — — 

$12,191 $        — 

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013

Currency option contracts:  

  To sell foreign currencies $        — $        —  

  To buy foreign currencies  —   — 

Forward exchange contracts:

  To sell foreign currencies 29,309 (1,085)

  To buy foreign currencies — —

$29,309 $ (1,085)
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23. Leases
Lessee
Finance leases (without transfer of legal title) that commenced on or before March 31, 2008 are accounted for as operating leases.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements as of March 31, 2013 are ¥430 million ($4,574 thousand) due 
within one year and ¥745 million ($7,926 thousand) due after one year.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.

 Forward exchange contracts accounted for under the assigning method are handled together with accounts receivable and accounts payable. 
Therefore, their fair value is included within the fair value of accounts receivable and accounts payable.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Millions of yen

Notional amount Estimated fair value Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013 2012

Commodity swap contracts:

  Variable receipt and �xed payment ¥  2,251 ¥     211 ¥  5,208 ¥    (210)

¥  2,251 ¥     211 ¥  5,208 ¥    (210)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Notional amount Estimated fair value

2013

Commodity swap contracts:  

  Variable receipt and �xed payment $23,947 $  2,245

$23,947 $  2,245
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Business combination through acquisition
On October 1, 2012, the Company acquired the semiconductor encapsu-
lating materials business of Nitto Denko Corporation, including two 
subsidiaries, NITTO ELECTRONICS KYUSYU CORPORATION (currently: 
Hitachi Chemical Electronics Materials (Kyushu) Co. Ltd.) and NITTO 
DENKO ELECTRONICS (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD. (currently: Hitachi 
Chemical (Selangor) Sdn. Bhd.). As a result of this transaction, the 
Company acquired 100% of the voting interest of these entities. The 

acquisition was intended to strengthen the Company’s semiconductor 
encapsulating materials business through consolidation of these newly 
acquired subsidiaries.

The difference between the considerations paid for the acquisition 
and the fair value of net assets was recorded as goodwill, which is 
relatively insignificant. As a result, the entire amount was amortized in 
full during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

24. Business Combinations
For the year ended March 31, 2013

A breakdown of the cost of the acquisition and the goodwill acquired is as follows:

Transactions between certain subsidiary and related party:

25. Related Party Transactions

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have related party transactions with Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company. The major transactions with 
Hitachi, Ltd., are as follows;

Cash paid in connection with the business transfer ¥4,563 million $48,542 thousand

Due diligence and other expenses ¥   175 million $  1,862 thousand

  Total cost of the acquisition: ¥4,738 million $50,404 thousand

Goodwill: ¥   187 million $  1,989 thousand

Millions of yen
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2013 2012 2013

Balances with Hitachi, Ltd.:
  Deposits to Hitachi group cash management fund ¥  30,314 ¥  35,168 $322,489

Transactions with Hitachi, Ltd.:
  Net increase (decrease) in deposits to Hitachi group cash management fund ¥   (4,854) ¥ (18,915) $ (51,638)
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The Company’s reportable segment is the constituent units of our 
business, for which separate financial information is available, and whose 
operating results are reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors of 
the Company to determine the allocation of management resources and 
assess their performance.

The Company is developing business activities based on the organi-
zational structure that is categorized depending on the degree of product 
processing, from materials through components to parts.

Based on the above, according to the degree of product processing, 
the Company determines two reportable segments, namely categorizing 
materials as “Functional Materials Segment” and the components and 
parts as “Advanced Components and Systems Segment”, and the main 

products of each reportable segment are provided on page 5 of this 
annual report.

In light of the conversion of Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd., 
into a wholly owned subsidiary, the Company established the Energy 
Devices & System Business Headquarters on April 1, 2012. In conjunction 
with this, certain products manufactured by Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery 
Co., Ltd. were switched from the Advanced Components and Systems 
Segment to the Functional Materials Segment effective starting from the 
fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

Segment information for the previous fiscal year has been restated 

to reflect the changes.

26. Segment Information

Reportable segment information:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2Millions of yen

Functional
Materials

Advanced
Components
and Systems Total Eliminations Consolidated

2013

Sales to external customers ¥245,157 ¥219,498 ¥464,655 ¥          — ¥464,655

Intersegment sales 8,101 1,304 9,405 (9,405) —

253,258 220,802 474,060 (9,405) 464,655

Operating income ¥  21,358 ¥    2,218 ¥  23,576 ¥        (17) ¥  23,559

Assets ¥270,357 ¥209,587 ¥479,944 ¥   (2,064) ¥477,880

Other

  Depreciation and amortization ¥  12,804 ¥  12,451 ¥  25,255 ¥          — ¥  25,255 

  Investments in equity method affiliates 5,666 2,120 7,786 — 7,786

  Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 22,619 27,263 49,882 — 49,882

  Impairment losses on fixed assets — 1,208 1,208 — 1,208

  Amortization of goodwill  453 3,272 3,725 — 3,725

  Goodwill  1,347 23,051 24,398 — 24,398

2Millions of yen

Functional
Materials

Advanced
Components
and Systems Total Eliminations Consolidated

2012

Sales to external customers ¥244,855 ¥228,214 ¥473,069 ¥          — ¥473,069

Intersegment sales 8,014 416 8,430 (8,430) — 

252,869 228,630 481,499 (8,430) 473,069

Operating income ¥  20,139 ¥    4,374 ¥  24,513 ¥        (18) ¥  24,495

Assets ¥253,255 ¥189,381 ¥442,636 ¥   (1,655) ¥440,981

Other

  Depreciation and amortization ¥  14,567 ¥  13,673 ¥  28,240 ¥          — ¥  28,240 

  Investments in equity method affiliates 4,747  1,680 6,427 — 6,427

  Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 19,645 41,773 61,418  — 61,418

  Impairment losses on fixed assets  14  585  599 —   599 

  Amortization of goodwill  136  672 808 — 808

  Goodwill  1,570  23,113 24,683 — 24,683
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Geographic Information:

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Functional
Materials

Advanced
Components
and Systems Total Eliminations Consolidated

2013

Sales to external customers $2,608,053 $2,335,085 $4,943,138 $            — $4,943,138 

Intersegment sales 86,181 13,872 100,053 (100,053)  — 

2,694,234 2,348,957 5,043,191 (100,053) 4,943,138

Operating income $   227,213 $     23,596 $   250,809 $        (181) $   250,628 

Assets $2,876,138 $2,229,649 $5,105,787 $   (21,957) $5,083,830 

Other

  Depreciation and amortization $   136,213 $   132,457 $   268,670 $            — $   268,670 

  Investments in equity method af�liates 60,277 22,553 82,830 — 82,830

  Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 240,628 290,032 530,660 — 530,660

  Impairment losses on �xed assets — 12,851 12,851 — 12,851

  Amortization of goodwill  4,819 34,809 39,628 — 39,628

  Goodwill  14,330 245,223 259,553 — 259,553

Millions of yen

Japan Asia Other areas Total

2013

Net sales ¥   247,736 ¥   188,590 ¥     28,329 ¥   464,655

Net property, plant and equipment ¥     96,371 ¥     59,248 ¥       6,401 ¥   162,020

Millions of yen

Japan Asia Other areas Total

2012

Net sales ¥   272,355 ¥   171,613 ¥     29,101 ¥   473,069

Net property, plant and equipment ¥     90,769 ¥     35,865 ¥       4,661 ¥   131,295

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Japan Asia Other areas Total

2013

Net sales $2,635,489 $2,006,277 $   301,372 $4,943,138

Net property, plant and equipment $1,025,223 $   630,298 $     68,096 $1,723,617
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS






